

Goldman Sachs Green, Social and Impact Bond Funds

2024 Impact Report

This is a marketing communication published by Goldman Sachs Asset Management B.V. ("GSAM B.V."), a UCITS Management Company domicied in the Netherlands and is intended for MIFID professional investors only. Your capital is at risk and you may lose some or all of the capital you invest. Please refer to the fund offering documentation before making any final investment decisions. The prospectus, the Key Information Document (KID) or UK Key Investor Information Document (KID) (as applicable), information on sustainability-related aspects of the fund (such as the EU SFDR disclosure), and other legally required documents relating to the fund (containing information about the fund, the costs and the risks involved) are available on am.gs.com/documents in the relevant languages of the countries where the fund is registered or notified for marketing purposes. Information about investor rights and collective redress mechanisms are available on am.gs.com/policies-andgovernance.

FOR PROFESSIONAL USE ONLY (WITHIN THE MEANING OF THE MIFID DIRECTIVE)- NOT FOR PUBLIC DISTRIBUTION. This document is provided for specific information purposes only in order to enable the recipient to assess the financial characteristics of the concerned financial instrument(s) as provided for in article I. 533-13-1, I, 2° of the french monetary and financial code and does not constitute and may not be used as marketing material for investors or potential investors in france.

Messaggio pubblicitario con finalità promozionali. Prima dell'adesione leggere il KID, che il proponente l'investimento deve consegnare prima della sottoscrizione, e il Prospetto disponibile sul sito Internet: https://am.gs.com/it-it/advisors e presso gli intermediari collocatori.

For Qualified Investor use only – Not for offering or advertising to general public. This is marketing material for financial instruments.

This document is provided to you by Goldman Sachs Asset Management Schweiz Gmbh. Any future contractual relationships will be entered into with affiliates of Goldman Sachs Asset Management Schweiz Gmbh, which are domiciled outside of Switzerland. We would like to remind you that foreign (Non-Swiss) legal and regulatory systems may not provide the same level of protection in relation to client confidentiality and data protection as offered to you by Swiss law.

Contents



Executive Summary	3
Introduction	6
Green Bond Strategy	7
Avoiding Greenhouse Gas Emissions	8
Promoting Renewable Energy	9
Improving Energy Efficiency	10
Green Bond Funds Overview	14
Social Bond Strategy	22
Number of Beneficiaries	24
Social Bond Fund Overview	28
Impact Bond Strategy	30
Environmental and Social Impact	32
Global Impact Corporate Bond Fund Overview	33
Engaging with Issuers	37
Our Investment Approach	43
Selecting Bonds for Investment	44
Impact Bond Program, Climate Transition and Active Selection	45
Tracking the Market	47
Impact Calculation Methodology	48
Sustainable and Impact Fixed Income Team	50
Appendix: Engagement	51

Impact Report 2024

Executive Summary

At Goldman Sachs Asset Management, we are committed to helping investors manage the risks and the opportunities created by the transition to a more sustainable economy. Our green, social and impact bond funds are some of the solutions we provide to help clients accomplish their goals related to the climate transition and inclusive growth.

Goldman Sachs Asset Management's green bond funds seek to advance the transition to a low-carbon economy by investing in bonds whose proceeds are used to finance environmentally beneficial projects. These projects are aligned with the Green Bond Principles,¹ a set of voluntary best-practice guidelines for issuers across categories including renewable energy, clean transportation and green buildings.

The Goldman Sachs Social Bond fund aims to address or mitigate specific social issues and achieve positive outcomes aligned with key categories set out in the Social Bond Principles,² including affordable basic infrastructure, access to essential services, affordable housing and employment generation.

The Goldman Sachs Global Impact Corporate Bond fund invests in a portfolio of green, social and sustainability bonds issued by companies around the world, providing exposure to the full range of opportunities in the transition to a more sustainable economy. Sustainability bonds are used to finance a combination of environmental and social projects and initiatives.

In our Impact Report for 2024, we share the expected impact associated with the investments in our five green bond mutual funds³ across these key metrics: annual greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions avoided, renewable energy capacity added, annual renewable energy generation output, and annual energy savings. For the Goldman Sachs Social Bond fund, we measure the number of expected beneficiaries from the projects supported by the bonds in the portfolio. These same environmental and social metrics are also used in our reporting on the Goldman Sachs Global Impact Corporate Bond fund.⁴ We now manage a total of \in 12.5 billion in assets across all these funds and related mandates.⁵

- 1 "Green Bond Principles: Voluntary Process Guidelines for Issuing Green Bonds," International Capital Market Association. As of June 2021.
- 2 "Social Bond Principles: Voluntary Process Guidelines for Issuing Social Bonds," ICMA. As of June 2023.
- 3 Goldman Sachs Green Bond, Goldman Sachs Green Bond Short Duration, Goldman Sachs Corporate Green Bond, Goldman Sachs Sovereign Green Bond and Goldman Sachs USD Green Bond.
- Green, social and sustainability bond issuers provide these metrics to investors in their annual impact reporting. We collect the available data reported by issuers of bonds held in our portfolios, then prorate the numbers by the amount of our investment to yield an aggregate expected impact number for our green and social bond funds. To aggregate bond information at the portfolio level, we use the portfolio-level share of allocation and impact per bond. This is calculated as the percentage of a bond's total issuance held by the fund. In this report, we use the portfolio holdings on December 31, 2024, for this calculation. The aggregated fund level use of proceeds, regional allocation, United Nations Sustainable Development Goal (SDG) contribution and impact metrics can then be derived by adding up the portfolio-level share of weighted bond allocations, SDG contributions and impacts. As outlined in the Impact Calculation Methodology section of this report, our approach tends to yield a conservative estimate of portfolio-level impact for two main reasons. The first is that impact data are not available for newly issued bonds, because issuers usually only publish their allocation and impact reports one year after issuance. For the newly issued bonds in our portfolio, we usually look for older bonds from the same issuer. If both the new and older bonds fall under the same framework and are subject to the same eligible asset pool, we assume the new issue's impact is zero. The second reason arises when we have doubts as to how an issuer arrives at the impact figures they provide. If our concerns remain unresolved after engagement with the issuer, we again adopt a conservative approach and assume the port of our concerns remain unresolved after engagement with the issuer, we again adopt a conservative approach and assume the port of our concerns remain unresolved after engagement with the issuer, we again adopt a conservative approach and assume the port of our concerns remain unresolved after engagement with the
- 5 Goldman Sachs Asset Management. As of December 31, 2024. Related mandates encompass those focused on green, social and impact bonds as well as sustainable credit.

Your capital is at risk and you may lose some or all of the capital you invest. Further information in relation to the sustainability-related aspects of the funds can be found <u>here</u>.

Green Bond Funds: Impact in 2024⁶

	Goldman Sachs Green Bond	Goldman Sachs Green Bond Short Duration	Goldman Sachs Corporate Green Bond	Goldman Sachs Sovereign Green Bond	Goldman Sachs USD Green Bond
Annual Greenhouse Gas Emissions Avoided (metric tons of CO2e)	351,449	74,941	273,499	88,734	9,955
Renewable Energy Capacity Added (MW)	240	56	200	51	5
Annual Renewable Energy Generation Output (GWh)	381	83	450	51	17
Annual Energy Savings (GWh)	51.5	11.1	27.2	15.4	0.3

Source: Goldman Sachs Asset Management, Data Provided by Issuers. As of December 31, 2024. These metrics are at a point in time as of the date indicated and are subject to change over time.

Social Bond Fund: Impact in 2024⁷

Expected Number of Beneficiaries

77,513

Source: Goldman Sachs Asset Management, Data Provided by Issuers. As of December 31, 2024. These metrics are at a point in time as of the date indicated and are subject to change over time.

- 6 For information on the methodology used to calculate these metrics as well as any limitations or assumptions within the calculation, see the Impact Calculation Methodology section of this report.
- 7 For information on the methodology used to calculate this metric as well as any limitations or assumptions within the calculation, see page 24 of this report.

The information contained on this page does not reflect binding characteristics of the portfolio for the purposes of the EU Sustainable Finance Disclosure Regulation ("SFDR").

Global Impact Corporate Bond Fund: Impact In 2024⁸

Annual Greenhouse Gas Emissions Avoided	Renewable Energy Capacity Added
$2,444_{\text{metric tons of CO}_2e}$	2мw
Annual Renewable Energy Generation Output	Expected Number Of Beneficiaries
3.6 gwh	630

Annual Energy Savings

210 мwh

Source: Goldman Sachs Asset Management, Data Provided by Issuers. As of December 31, 2024. These metrics are at a point in time as of the date indicated and are subject to change over time.

In addition to presenting and contextualizing the expected impact our green, social and impact bond funds had in 2024, this report sets out our approach to investing in these markets and explains the tools we use to screen issuers and gauge the credibility of their sustainability ambitions. As a result of our screening process, which looks beyond the label at factors including the underlying projects and issuers' sustainability strategies, we reject 21.9% of the green bonds in the Bloomberg MSCI Global Green Bond Index as well as 14.5% of the social bonds in the iBoxx EUR Social Bonds Investment Grade (10% Issuer Cap) index.⁹

The report also explores our commitment to promoting and exercising effective bondholder engagement with the issuers in the portfolios we manage on behalf of our clients. This includes investment research and monitoring and our efforts to facilitate market development. We define "investment research and monitoring engagements" as active dialogue or exchange of written communication with a company or issuers undertaken primarily to seek information or to inform our investment decisions. This could include research analysts engaging on earnings, business operations, or other strategic matters, for example. Within Goldman Sachs Asset Management's public markets investing business, the Global Stewardship Team helps drive the continued enhancement of our approach to stewardship in collaboration with our public investment teams.

- 8 For information on the methodology used to calculate the environmental metrics on this page as well as any limitations or assumptions within the calculation, see the Impact Calculation Methodology section of this report. For information on the "Expected Number of Beneficiaries" metric, see page 24 of this report.
- 9 Goldman Sachs Asset Management. Data as of December 31, 2024. This metric is at a point in time and is subject to change.

There is no guarantee that objectives will be met.

The information contained on this page does not reflect binding characteristics of the portfolio for the purposes of the EU Sustainable Finance Disclosure Regulation ("SFDR").

The engagement/proxy voting highlights presented here outline examples of Goldman Sachs Asset Management initiatives, there is no assurance that Goldman Sachs' engagement/proxy voting directly caused the outcome described herein.

Introduction

More capital is needed to facilitate the low-carbon transition, especially in high-emission sectors such as construction, energy and transportation. To help foster economic growth, investment must be stepped up in key areas such as education, healthcare and job creation. Helping solve these problems will create opportunities for investors across sectors and asset classes.

The global bond market will be an important source of financing to drive this economic transformation. Yet until recently, investors seeking to make an environmental or social impact with their fixed income allocations without sacrificing returns and liquidity had few options. The emergence of green, social and sustainability bonds into the investing mainstream is changing that. Thanks to their rapid growth and the expanding range of funds offering exposure to these products, investors can use them to replace a portion of the conventional bonds in their fixed income portfolios while seeking to achieve their climate ambitions.

As asset managers, we are the bridge between issuers of labeled bonds and fixed income investors seeking to advance the sustainable transition. Our Sustainable and Impact Fixed Income team has developed a proprietary investment process that allows us to identify issuers that have credible transition strategies and are making measurable environmental and/ or social impact. We are committed to communication with issuers and syndicates to promote the development of the labeled bond market.

Our range of sustainable fund offerings has expanded along with the market and now includes seven mutual funds.¹⁰ Our commitment to sustainable investing in fixed income dates to 2016, when our flagship Goldman Sachs Green Bond fund was launched. This was followed by a green short-duration option and offerings focused on green corporate and sovereign bonds. The Goldman Sachs Social Bond fund was added in 2022, followed a year later by the Goldman Sachs USD Green Bond and Goldman Sachs Global Impact Corporate Bond funds. This report focuses first on our green bond mutual funds, showing their expected impact in 2024 and breaking down their holdings by regional allocation, use of proceeds and alignment with the United Nations' Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) and the European Union's taxonomy for sustainable activities.

The second section of the report highlights the expected impact of our social bond fund and analyzes its composition. A section on the Goldman Sachs Global Impact Corporate Bond fund follows, including an explanation of how sustainability bonds fit into our strategy. Finally, the report explains our approach to green, social and sustainability bond investing.

This year's report also contains some new sections. For the first time, we provide data on greenhouse gas emissions associated with the portfolios of our green and impact bond funds. We explore the connections between issuers' adoption of a labeled-bond program and the ambition of their climate-transition plans. And we provide in-depth analysis of our engagement with issuers.

I invite you to explore our Impact Report for 2024 and welcome any feedback you may have. ■



Bram Bos

Global Head of Sustainable and Impact Fixed Income

10 Goldman Sachs Green Bond, Goldman Sachs Green Bond Short Duration, Goldman Sachs Corporate Green Bond, Goldman Sachs Sovereign Green Bond, Goldman Sachs USD Green Bond, Goldman Sachs Social Bond, and Goldman Sachs Global Impact Corporate Bond.

Views and opinions expressed are for informational purposes only and do not constitute a recommendation by Goldman Sachs Asset Management to buy, sell, or hold any security. Views and opinions are current as of the date of this report and may be subject to change, they should not be construed as investment advice.

Goldman Sachs Green Bond Strategy

Our flagship green bond fund was launched in 2016. In the years since, our offerings have expanded along with the market. Our strategy gives investors more options as they consider adding green bonds to their fixed income portfolios. Green bonds are standard fixed income securities with a green objective. Their financial characteristics such as structure, risk and return are similar to those of traditional bonds. The main difference is that the goal for green bonds is to finance only projects or activities with a specific environmental purpose such as renewable energy, clean transportation, sustainable water and energy efficiency. Our funds are focused on delivering impact across four key performance indicators: annual greenhouse gas emissions avoided, renewable energy capacity added, annual renewable energy generation output, and annual energy savings.

The first green bond was issued in 2007 by the European Investment Bank (EIB), the lending arm of the European Union (EU).¹¹ Since that inaugural issue, green bonds have expanded into a \$2.7 trillion market.¹² Driven in the early years by multilateral development banks such as the EIB and the World Bank, which issued its first green bond in 2008,¹³ the market has seen the range of issuers expand to include companies and governments across the globe seeking investment to drive their plans to reduce greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions and guard against physical climate risks. The investor base has also expanded to include a growing number of traditional fixed income investors, not just those focused primarily on impact and environmental, social and governance (ESG) criteria.

The momentum in the green bond market reflects a growing commitment to building a sustainable economy, driven by a combination of issuers' increasingly determined climatechange responses and investors seeking to support the transition to a low-carbon economy while generating financial returns. International associations are steadily improving guidance for market participants, which facilitates the wider use of green bonds for sustainable financing. For example, the International Capital Market Association (ICMA), together with other international organizations, has developed a global practitioner's guide for bonds to finance the sustainable blue economy.¹⁴ In Europe, the voluntary European Green Bond Standard, which builds on the EU taxonomy for sustainable activities, came into effect in late December 2024. The EIB, Île-de-France Mobilités and A2A are among the first entities to issue a green bond under the new standard.¹⁵

- 11 "EPOS II The 'Climate Awareness Bond': EIB Promotes Climate Protection Via Pan-EU Public Offering," EIB press release. As of May 22, 2007.
- 12 Goldman Sachs Asset Management, Bloomberg. As of December 31, 2024.
- 13 "World Bank and SEB Partner With Scandinavian Institutional Investors to Finance 'Green' Projects," World Bank press release. As of November 6, 2008. The specific issuer was the International Bank for Reconstruction and Development (IBRD), part of the World Bank Group.
- 14 "Bonds to Finance the Sustainable Blue Economy: A Practitioner's Guide," ICMA. As of September 2023. The ICMA guide defines the blue economy as follows: "The blue economy encompasses economic activities that rely or impact on the use of coastal and marine resources. Like the broader concept of the green economy, of which the blue economy forms a part, it advocates sustainable use of these resources to minimize negative impacts on the marine environment. Investing in the sustainable blue economy (SBE) recognizes the criticality of the ocean and its resources, and the increasing threats to the marine environment from climate change, overexploitation, and marine pollution."
- 15 Bloomberg. As of May 18, 2025.

Your capital is at risk and you may lose some or all of the capital you invest.

Avoiding Greenhouse Gas Emissions

Annual GHG emissions avoided, measured in metric tons of carbon dioxide equivalent (CO₂e),¹⁶ is the most frequently reported green bond metric within the post-issuance reporting provided by issuers. It can be achieved through a range of projects, such as renewable energy plants that help reduce demand for traditional energy, and public transportation that allows people to travel less in private cars. Other projects that fall into this category include installing optical fiber to improve energy efficiency and financing green buildings that use energy and water more efficiently.

Green bond issuers provide this metric to investors in their annual impact reporting. We collect the available data reported by issuers of bonds held in our portfolios, then prorate the numbers by the amount of our investment to yield an aggregate expected impact number for our green bond strategy.¹⁷ Applying this methodology, we expect aggregate annual GHG emissions avoided in 2024 for the five green bond funds covered in this report¹⁸ to total 798,578 metric tons of CO_2e . The table below provides the estimated results for our five green bond funds.

	Goldman Sachs Green Bond	Goldman Sachs Green Bond Short Duration	Goldman Sachs Corporate Green Bond	Goldman Sachs Sovereign Green Bond	Goldman Sachs USD Green Bond
Annual GHG Emissions Avoided (metric tons of CO2e)	351,449	74,941	273,499	88,734	9,955
Annual GHG Emissions Avoided per €1 Million Invested (metric tons of CO₂e)	166	145	191	160	242
Portfolio coverage ¹⁹	64%	61%	74%	60%	52%

Source: Goldman Sachs Asset Management, Data Provided by Issuers. As of December 31, 2024. These metrics are at a point in time as of the date indicated and are subject to change over time.

- 16 Not all greenhouse gases warm the atmosphere equally. For this reason, the term CO₂e is used to provide a uniform means of measuring emissions. In calculating CO₂e, greenhouse gases such as methane are converted to the equivalent amount of carbon dioxide based on their relative contribution to global warming.
- 17 For a more detailed explanation, see the Impact Calculation Methodology section of this report.
- 18 Goldman Sachs Green Bond, Goldman Sachs Green Bond Short Duration, Goldman Sachs Corporate Green Bond, Goldman Sachs Sovereign Green Bond, Goldman Sachs USD Green Bond.
- 19 Portfolio coverage denotes the percentage of portfolio market value that has been allocated to projects that contribute to this metric and for which impact data are available.

The information contained on this page does not reflect binding characteristics of the portfolio for the purposes of the EU Sustainable Finance Disclosure Regulation ("SFDR").

Promoting Renewable Energy

Green bonds used to finance renewable energy projects account for the largest share of the holdings in our green bond funds. In addition to wind and solar – the main types of renewable energy – other sources are being developed. Hydropower and bioenergy in particular are attracting increasing allocations of green bond proceeds. Renewable energy capacity added is measured in megawatts (MW) and annual renewable energy generation output in gigawatt hours (GWh).

Green bond issuers provide these metrics to investors in their annual impact reporting. We collect the available data reported by issuers of bonds held in our portfolios, then prorate the numbers by the amount of our investment to yield an aggregate expected impact number for our green bond strategy.²⁰ Applying this methodology, we expect the five green bond funds covered in this report to have a combined annual renewable energy output of 982 GWh and to facilitate the combined addition of 552 MW of renewable energy capacity. The funds' total expected impact and impact per €1 million invested are shown in the following table.

	Goldman Sachs Green Bond	Goldman Sachs Green Bond Short Duration	Goldman Sachs Corporate Green Bond	Goldman Sachs Sovereign Green Bond	Goldman Sachs USD Green Bond
Renewable Energy Capacity Added (MW)	240	56	200	51	5
Portfolio coverage	25.8%	24.6%	32.3%	23.1%	25.7%
Annual Renewable Energy Generation Output (GWh)	381	83	450	51	17
Annual Renewable Energy Generation Output per €1 Million Invested (GWh)	0.18	0.16	0.32	0.09	0.41
Portfolio coverage ²¹	22.4%	20.9%	27.0%	19.7%	20.8%

Source: Goldman Sachs Asset Management, Data Provided by Issuers. As of December 31, 2024. These metrics are at a point in time as of the date indicated and are subject to change over time.

20 For a more detailed explanation, see the Impact Calculation Methodology section of this report.

21 Portfolio coverage denotes the percentage of portfolio market value that has been allocated to projects that contribute to this metric and for which impact data are available.

The information contained on this page does not reflect binding characteristics of the portfolio for the purposes of the EU Sustainable Finance Disclosure Regulation ("SFDR").

Improving Energy Efficiency

We invest to increase energy efficiency and reduce energy consumption. This helps reduce the use of fossil fuels and avoid GHG emissions. Energy savings are measured in GWh per year.

The annual energy savings of our green bond portfolios are expected to be a combined 105.5 GWh. The portfolios' expected impact and impact per €1 million invested are

shown in the table below. Energy savings are mainly from three use-of-proceeds categories: energy efficiency, green building and low- carbon transportation.

	Goldman Sachs Green Bond	Goldman Sachs Green Bond Short Duration	Goldman Sachs Corporate Green Bond	Goldman Sachs Sovereign Green Bond	Goldman Sachs USD Green Bond
Annual Energy Savings (GWh)	51.5	11.1	27.2	15.4	0.3
Annual Energy Savings per €1 Million Invested (MWh)	24	21	19	28	8
Portfolio coverage ²²	29.2%	27.3%	30.4%	28.4%	17.5%

Source: Goldman Sachs Asset Management, Data Provided by Issuers. As of December 31, 2024. These metrics are at a point in time as of the date indicated and are subject to change over time.

22 Portfolio coverage denotes the percentage of portfolio market value that has been allocated to projects that contribute to this metric and for which impact data are available.

The information contained on this page does not reflect binding characteristics of the portfolio for the purposes of the EU Sustainable Finance Disclosure Regulation ("SFDR").

INSIGHTS FROM ISSUERS

Avangrid

A US-based energy company



Laney Brown Vice President - Sustainability²³

What are Avangrid's priorities in allocating green-bond proceeds?

Avangrid²⁴ issued its first green bond in 2017. Since then, the company and its subsidiaries have returned to the market regularly to finance projects focused on renewable energy and network improvements. On the renewable-energy side, these projects include solar and wind energy. On the network side, the financing supports projects designed to enhance the sustainability and efficiency of our energy infrastructure. Examples include smart-meter deployment, electric-vehicle infrastructure, investments in network resiliency and more efficient streetlight programs.

One notable renewable energy project financed by green-bond proceeds is the Lund Hill Solar Farm in Washington. It is the state's largest solar plant, with an installed capacity of 150 megawatts. The plant supports large commercial and local government participants in purchasing dedicated local renewable energy.²⁵

What impact does Avangrid seek to achieve through the projects it finances with green bonds? How do you measure the impact of these projects?

These projects are designed to make significant impacts in areas such as renewable energy production and the reduction of CO₂ emissions, as well as improving the efficiency and resiliency of the energy network. We see growing demand in the US for high-quality sustainable investments, and our projects are designed to meet this demand. Our green-bond program is also aligned with the climate goals of our parent company, lberdrola, which aims to achieve carbon neutrality for scope 1 and 2 emissions by 2030.²⁶ Our investments are fully aligned with our overall commitment to support the energy transition in a fair and equitable way. We expect to keep our investment focus on renewable energy and networks, which are essential to connect all customers to clean-energy solutions, ensure safety and reliability, and provide the means to adapt to increasingly extreme weather.

- 23 This interview has been edited for brevity and clarity. The views and opinions expressed are those of the speaker as of February 28, 2025. They are presented here for informational purposes only, do not constitute any investment advice or recommendation by Goldman Sachs Asset Management, and may be subject to change. We have relied upon and assumed (without independent verification) the accuracy and completeness of such information and neither agree nor disagree with the content herein. Individual portfolio management teams for Goldman Sachs Asset Management may have views and opinions and/or make investment decisions that, in certain instances, may not always be consistent with the views and opinions expressed herein.
- 24 Avangrid is a unit of Spanish energy firm Iberdrola.
- 25 "Lund Hill Solar Now Fully Operational," Avangrid press release. As of February 28, 2023.
- 26 "Iberdrola's Zero Emissions Objectives and Projects," Iberdrola website. As of February 28, 2025. Iberdrola seeks to achieve net-zero emissions for all scopes before 2040.

We report impact metrics for renewable energy and network efficiency, the two main categories in our green bond program. For renewable energy projects, the impact metrics are capacity installation (MW), output (GWh) and CO₂ emissions avoided (metric tons). For network efficiency projects, such as LED streetlights, the quantitative metrics reported include energy savings (GWh) and CO₂ emissions avoided (metric tons). For network efficiency projects, such as LED streetlights, the quantitative metrics reported include energy savings (GWh) and CO₂ emissions avoided (metric tons). For example, in 2023 we reported 538 MW of installed capacity, 1,544 GWh of output and nearly 1.1 million metric tons of CO₂ avoided for our renewable energy projects financed with the 2019 green bond.

How are themes such as just transition and biodiversity incorporated into your green bond financing strategy?

Our commitment to these issues is embedded in the way we work. Our just transition framework focuses on customers, workforce, communities and suppliers. In 2024, we tracked the progress of projects aligned with each of these pillars to assess their impact. We are also working to increase supplier diversity. A good example of a just transition project funded through green bond issuance is our electric vehicle (EV) infrastructure project in New York, which focuses on disadvantaged communities. The project aims to provide equitable access to EV infrastructure. More than 35% of our network capital expenditure supports disadvantaged communities, and we would expect that ratio to apply to projects funded through green bonds.

The main objectives of our biodiversity policy and strategy are to integrate conservation into the planning, development, execution and decommissioning of infrastructure projects. To achieve these goals, we conduct comprehensive environmental assessments to understand the potential impacts of projects in our service areas. This helps us identify sensitive environmental areas and resources, allowing the company to avoid or minimize negative impacts through proactive mitigation actions. In 2024, we deployed our biodiversity accounting framework across the company to pilot and assess the biodiversity impacts of renewable energy projects and network sites. These preliminary assessments seem to demonstrate a positive biodiversity impact.



Green Bond Funds Overview

Our flagship, Goldman Sachs Green Bond fund, was launched in 2016. In the years since, our offerings have expanded along with the market. Our strategy now comprises five green bond mutual funds,²⁷ giving investors more options as they consider adding green bonds to their fixed income portfolios.

"For the investors in our funds, being able to see the impact that is achieved alongside the financial performance is increasingly important. Our impact bond database and the data collected by our impact analysts enables us to report against several impact key performance indicators with the quality and clarity that investors need."



Doug Farquhar Client PM, Sustainable and Impact Fixed Income

Goldman Sachs Green Bond, our largest green bond fund, focuses primarily on eurodenominated investment grade green bonds issued by companies and governments around the world. Goldman Sachs Green Bond Short Duration has the same investment profile as the main fund, with some slight differences in positioning arising from portfolio management. It uses interest rate futures to hedge average duration back to two years.

27 Goldman Sachs Green Bond, Goldman Sachs Green Bond Short Duration, Goldman Sachs Corporate Green Bond, Goldman Sachs Sovereign Green Bond, Goldman Sachs USD Green Bond.

The Goldman Sachs Corporate Green Bond fund focuses exclusively on bonds issued by corporates mainly denominated in euros, while our Goldman Sachs Sovereign Green Bond invests in bonds issued by governments and governmentrelated entities, also mainly in euros. Goldman Sachs USD Green Bond invests primarily in US-dollar denominated securities. In addition to our funds, we also manage mandates for clients tailored to their own ambitions and requirements. Mandate assets are included in our total figure for assets under management in green bond strategies. Four of our funds have earned the Greenfin label: Goldman Sachs Green Bond, Goldman Sachs Green Bond Short Duration, Goldman Sachs Corporate Green Bond and Goldman Sachs Sovereign Green Bond. The French government created the Greenfin label as part of its efforts to promote green funds and channel capital toward the energy and ecological transition and the response to climate change.²⁸

	Goldman Sachs Green Bond	Goldman Sachs Green Bond Short Duration	Goldman Sachs Corporate Green Bond	Goldman Sachs Sovereign Green Bond	Goldman Sachs USD Green Bond
Inception Date	February 26, 2016	April 1, 2019	February 29, 2020	March 31, 2021	March 15, 2023
Investment Objective	We actively manage the environmental impact		ds that may offer attract	ive financial returns and	a measurable positive
Investment Universe	Global Green Bonds	Global Green Bonds	Global Corporate Green Bonds	Global Government and Government- Related Green Bonds	Global Green Bonds
Benchmark	Bloomberg MSCI Euro Green Bond (NR) 10% Capped Index	No benchmark	Bloomberg Euro Green Corporate Bond 5% Issuer Capped	Bloomberg MSCI Euro Green Bond Treasury and Government- Related 10% Capped Index	Bloomberg MSCI USD Green Bond Index
Investment Process	Once the eligible universe is determined after our green bond screening, we combine our analysis on specific bond issuers with a broader market analysis to construct the optimal portfolio.				
Alpha Sources	Active management of the investment portfolio. High-quality in-depth fundamental analysis to enable issue selection. A sophisticated approach to portfolio construction, emphasizing risk diversification.				
Duration	Benchmark duration	2 years	Benchmark duration	Benchmark duration	Benchmark duration
Fund AuM	\$2.201 billion	\$539 million	\$1.488 billion	\$578 million	\$41 million
Currency Risk	100% hedged	100% hedged	100% hedged	100% hedged	100% hedged
SFDR	Sustainable investment objective pursuant to Article 9	Sustainable investment objective pursuant to Article 9	Sustainable investment objective pursuant to Article 9	Sustainable investment objective pursuant to Article 9	Sustainable investment objective pursuant to Article 9

Source: Goldman Sachs Asset Management. As of December 31, 2024.

Your capital is at risk and you may lose some or all of the capital you invest. There is no guarantee that objectives will be met. Further information in relation to the sustainability-related aspects of the funds can be found <u>here</u>. Diversification does not protect an investor from market risk and does not ensure a profit.

^{28 &}quot;Greenfin Label, France Finance Verte: Criteria Guidelines," French Ministry for Ecological Transition and Territorial Cohesion, French Ministry for Energy Transition. As of January 2024.

Regional Allocation

Europe has long been the main driving force in the green bond market, fueled by a diverse mix of issuers across the region's major national markets. In 2024, it claimed the top three spots in global issuance, with the EIB in first place, KfW Development Bank in second and the EU in third.²⁹ Europe's leading role in the market is reflected in the volume of euro-denominated green bonds, which accounted for 53% of the market at the end of 2024.³⁰

US dollar-denominated bonds issued by corporates and local authorities in the US as well as other issuers around the world were a distant second at 16% of the green bond market. The remainder of the market was made up of bonds issued in other currencies, led by Chinese renminbi, the pound sterling, Swedish krona and Japanese yen.

Regional Allocation of Our Green Bond Funds in 2024

The importance of the European green bond market for corporate and sovereign issuers is reflected in the regional allocations of our funds. The high percentage allocation of our funds to Europe has remained fairly constant over the years and shows the dominance of European issuers.

This is particularly evident for our Goldman Sachs Green Bond and Goldman Sachs Sovereign Green Bond funds, reflecting the volume of European sovereign issues of recent years and their weight in the aggregate market indices. The heavy Europe weighting also highlights the difference in quality of green bond frameworks and transition plans. We analyzed the issuerlabeled green bonds from the 27 EU countries in our database and found that 77% met our standards for green bonds; for Asia-Pacific issuers, the figure was 33%. Goldman Sachs USD Green Bond provides different regional exposures, with 51.6% of proceeds allocated to the Americas and 37.6% to Europe.

In this section and the two that follow on the use of proceeds and SDG contributions, we provide numbers for four funds: Goldman Sachs Green Bond, Goldman Sachs Corporate Green Bond, Goldman Sachs Sovereign Green Bond and Goldman Sachs USD Green Bond. The allocation of the Goldman Sachs Green Bond Short Duration fund mirrors that of the flagship fund.



Source: Goldman Sachs Asset Management. As of December 31, 2024. Total is less than 100% because some new issuers have not yet published their allocation report. The allocation of the Goldman Sachs Green Bond Short Duration fund mirrors that of the Goldman Sachs Green Bond fund.

29 Goldman Sachs Asset Management, Bloomberg. As of December 31, 2024.

30 Goldman Sachs Asset Management, Bloomberg. As of December 31, 2024.

Portfolio holdings and/or allocations shown above are as of the date indicated and may not be representative of future investments. The holdings and/or allocations shown may not represent all of the portfolio's investments. Future investments may or may not be profitable.

Use-of-Proceeds Breakdown

The core of a green bond is the commitment to use the proceeds to finance eligible projects that aim to make a positive impact on the environment. This "use-of-proceeds" pledge was a defining feature of green bonds from the start, and the structure that eventually became standard practice in the market was initially worked out by pioneer issuers such as the EIB and the World Bank.

A green bond's use of proceeds is typically set out in the issuer's green bond framework. All eligible projects financed by a green bond provide clear environmental benefits that the issuer should assess as well as quantify, where this is feasible. The use of proceeds concept is spelled out in the Green Bond Principles, which provide best-practice recommendations for issuers. These voluntary guidelines, which have become the industry's most widely adopted standard, were developed by a group of global banks and first published in 2014 by the International Capital Market Association (ICMA).³¹

The Green Bond Principles provide broad categories of eligible projects that cover the types most commonly financed with green bonds, including renewable energy and energy efficiency, clean transportation and biodiversity conservation. Energy, buildings and transport top the list of use-of- proceeds categories financed by green bonds, accounting for 75% of total volume at the end of 2023, according to the Climate Bonds Initiative.³² These three use-of-proceeds categories, slightly modified as alternative energy, green building and lowcarbon transportation, also occupy the top three spots in the breakdown of holdings in the Goldman Sachs Green Bond fund. The differences between how public and private issuers use the funds raised with green bonds are also reflected in the holdings of our funds. The low-carbon transportation segment is a good example.

Governments and government-related entities are investing heavily in infrastructure to electrify and modernize public transportation systems. As a result, low-carbon transportation accounted for 29.5% of the Goldman Sachs Sovereign Green Bond fund portfolio at the end of last year. The allocation to this segment in the Goldman Sachs Corporate Green Bond fund was 5.7%.

31 "Green Bond Principles: Voluntary Process Guidelines for Issuing Green Bonds," ICMA. As of June 2021. Goldman Sachs was among nine initial supporters of the Green Bond Principles.

32 "Interactive Data Platform," Climate Bonds Initiative website. Data as of December 31, 2023.

Portfolio holdings and/or allocations shown above are as of the date indicated and may not be representative of future investments. The holdings and/or allocations shown may not represent all of the portfolio's investments. Future investments may or may not be profitable.

Use of Proceeds of Our Green Bond Funds in 2024

Alternative Energy
Circular Economy
Climate Change Adaptation
Energy Efficiency
Green Building
Low-carbon Transportation
Other
Pollution Prevention and Control
Sustainable Management of Natural Resources
Sustainable Water and Wastewater Management
Terrestrial and Aquatic Biodiversity



Source: Goldman Sachs Asset Management. As of December 31, 2024. Total is less than 100% because some new issuers have not yet published their allocation report. The allocation of the Goldman Sachs Green Bond Short Duration fund mirrors that of the Goldman Sachs Green Bond fund.

Portfolio holdings and/or allocations shown above are as of the date indicated and may not be representative of future investments. The holdings and/or allocations shown may not represent all of the portfolio's investments. Future investments may or may not be profitable.

SDG Exposure

The global response to climate change has helped drive the growth of the green bond market from the start. These efforts reached a watershed in 2015, when the UN adopted the Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs), a 15-year action plan for protecting the environment, ending poverty and reducing inequality.³³ These goals sparked further expansion of sustainable investing, including green bonds, by driving home the urgent need for investment and setting critical targets. The SDGs have provided issuers and investors in the green bond market with a common purpose and a framework for identifying investment priorities and assessing progress towards global climate goals.

There is a growing trend for issuers to report the impact of their bonds in terms of the SDGs, which have emerged as a common language for understanding how companies and portfolios are positioned for environmental and social impact.

Our green bond funds focus on eight SDGs that cover climate- and environment-related issues. We assess the SDG contribution each bond makes based on the specific projects it is financing and the direct contributions it makes to achieving the SDGs. We do not count indirect SDG contributions.

The difference between our funds is also evident in the SDG contributions they make. The Goldman Sachs Green Bond fund, which invests in government as well as corporate bonds, and the Goldman Sachs Sovereign Green Bond made substantial contributions to SDG 14 (Life Below Water) and SDG 15 (Life on Land) last year. Governments are more likely to own the rights to and therefore use green bonds to finance the sustainable management of natural resources through projects such as soil rehabilitation and biodiversity research and protection.



SDG Exposure of Our Green Bond Funds in 2024

Source: Goldman Sachs Asset Management. As of December 31, 2024. Portfolio positions can have exposure to multiple SDG themes. Note: SDG 6 (Clean Water and Sanitation), SDG 7 (Affordable and Clean Energy), SDG 9 (Industry, Innovation and Infrastructure), SDG 11 (Sustainable Cities and Communities), SDG 12 (Responsible Consumption and Production), SDG 13 (Climate Action), SDG 14 (Life Below Water), SDG 15 (Life on Land).

33 "Unanimously Adopting Historic Sustainable Development Goals, General Assembly Shapes Global Outlook for Prosperity, Peace," UN press release. As of September 25, 2015.

The information contained on this page does not reflect binding characteristics of the portfolio for the purposes of the EU Sustainable Finance Disclosure Regulation ("SFDR").

EU Taxonomy Alignment

The EU launched the taxonomy for sustainable activities in 2020 as part of efforts to meet its climate and energy targets for 2030 and achieve the objectives of the European Green Deal, the bloc's plan to become climate-neutral by 2050.³⁴ To channel investment into sustainable projects, the EU decided that a classification system was needed to provide a clear definition of sustainable economic activities along with a common set of terms for talking about them. We have been tracking the taxonomy alignment of every green bond in our portfolios since 2021. This process involves testing each bond against technical screening criteria specified in EU regulations for climate change mitigation and adaptation activities. We also factor in the EU's principle that activities intended to achieve one environmental objective should "do no significant harm" to other objectives.³⁵

For reporting under the EU's Sustainable Finance Disclosure Regulation, only the activities financed by a bond that are fully aligned with the taxonomy can count toward the portfolio's alignment score. Based on this assessment, here are the alignment ratings of our green bond funds as of the end of September, 2024:

Fund Name	EU Taxonomy Alignment
Goldman Sachs Green Bond	38%
Goldman Sachs Green Bond Short Duration	39%
Goldman Sachs Corporate Green Bond	40%
Goldman Sachs Sovereign Green Bond	39%
Goldman Sachs USD Green Bond	29%

Source: Goldman Sachs Asset Management. As of September 30, 2024.. These metrics are at a point in time as of the date indicated and are subject to change over time.

34 "EU Taxonomy for Sustainable Activities," European Commission website. As of August 1, 2023.

35 See the Impact Calculation Methodology section of this report for more detail.

Financed GHG Emissions

In this section, we present the financed emissions (in metric tons of CO_2e) per \$1 million investment in 2024 for the green bond funds covered in this report.³⁶

The Greenhouse Gas Protocol has become a widely adopted standard for measuring and reporting on GHG emissions. The protocol breaks emissions down into three "scopes":

- Scope 1 covers direct emissions from sources owned or controlled by a company
- Scope 2 describes indirect emissions from the generation of energy a company has purchased
- Scope 3 encompasses all indirect emissions not included in scope 2 that occur in a company's value chain both upstream and downstream³⁷

The following table shows how our five green bond mutual funds compare with their benchmarks in terms of financed emissions.

Financed GHG Emissions (tCO₂e)³⁸

	Scopes 1&2	Scope 3
GS Green Bond	50.4	287.9
Benchmark	45.5	401.7
GS Green Bond Short Duration	49.2	265.2
Benchmark	44.5	395.1
GS Corporate Green Bond	48	260
Benchmark	62	407.8
GS Sovereign Green Bond	78.6	497.2
Benchmark	34.7	429.2
GS USD Green Bond	162.9	302.6
Benchmark	178.1	341.1

Source: MSCI, Goldman Sachs Asset Management. As of December 31, 2024.

36 This metric is not indicative of targets that the funds in question have set and aim to achieve.

37 "FAQ," Greenhouse Gas Protocol website. As of February 25, 2025.

38 The calculation for the financed emissions metric is as below according to MSCI:

 $\sum_{n}^{i} \left(\frac{current \ value \ of \ investment_{i}}{issuer's \ Scope \ 1} \ and \ Scope \ 2 \ GHG \ emissions_{i} \right)$

current portfolio value (\$M)

GOLDMAN SACHS GREEN, SOCIAL AND IMPACT BOND FU

PACT REPORT 2024

Social Bond Strategy

The first formal social bond was issued in early 2015. By the end of 2024, social bonds had grown into a \$739 billion market, building on the momentum and reputation of the green bond market.³⁹

39 Goldman Sachs Asset Management, Bloomberg. As of December 31, 2024.

GOLDMAN SACHS ASSET MANAGE

Social bond issuers have adopted many of the practices, such as use of proceeds clauses, that were developed to boost the credibility and transparency of green bonds. The expansion of the market was also boosted by ICMA's 2017 publication of the Social Bond Principles, a set of voluntary guidelines for issuers based on the Green Bond Principles.⁴⁰

We believe the growth of social bonds has been driven by strong demand from investors interested in making a positive impact on society in addition to generating financial returns. Social bonds may also help improve a portfolio's alignment with the goals of ending poverty and reducing inequality set out in the UN's SDGs.

Social bonds can be used to finance a wide range of projects with certain social benefits, such as building affordable housing and expanding access to healthcare. The first formal social bond, issued by Instituto de Crédito Oficial (ICO) in 2015, was used to provide loans to small and medium-sized enterprises in economically depressed regions of Spain with the goal of protecting and creating jobs.⁴¹

Measuring Our Impact

Defining and quantifying real-world impact is a critical goal of all use-of-proceeds bonds. In the case of green bonds, this can be accomplished by measuring specific environmental impacts targeted by the bond, such as GHG emissions avoided. With social bonds, however, it can be more challenging to measure how proceeds are contributing to a positive impact on society and specific target populations.

The Social Bond Principles set out broad categories of projects eligible for financing that range from providing affordable basic infrastructure including clean drinking water to promoting socioeconomic advancement and empowerment, such as reducing income inequality.⁴² Projects like these are a big part of the reason investors are adding social bonds to their portfolios.

The Social Bond Principles also identify target populations that could be served by social bonds, including people with disabilities, the unemployed, low-income individuals, women and/or sexual and gender minorities, aging populations and vulnerable youth. The underlying principle is that projects financed by social bonds aim to address a specific social issue, seek to achieve positive social outcomes for a specific population, or both.

- 40 "Green Bond Principles evolve to encourage new categories of issuers and embrace Social & Sustainability Bond market participants," ICMA press release. As of June 14, 2017.
- 41 "Spanish Government Bank Attracts ESG Investors to New €1bn 'Social Bond,'" Responsible Investor. As of January 30, 2015. This bond matured in December 2017, according to Bloomberg data.
- 42 Social Bond Principles: Voluntary Process Guidelines for Issuing Social Bonds," ICMA. As of June 2023.

Your capital is at risk and you may lose some or all of the capital you invest. There is no guarantee that objectives will be met. Further information in relation to the sustainability-related aspects of the funds can be found <u>here</u>. Diversification does not protect an investor from market risk and does not ensure a profit.

Number of Beneficiaries

In assessing the expected impact of the Goldman Sachs Social Bond fund, our primary focus is on the number of beneficiaries. We measure this impact based on the understanding that social issues threaten, hinder or damage the wellbeing of society as a whole or a specific target population. We acknowledge that the definition of target population can vary depending on context and that in some cases a target population may be best served by a project that also benefits the general public.

Social bond issuers provide data on the number of beneficiaries to investors, wherever available, in their annual impact reporting. We collect the available data reported by issuers of bonds held in our portfolios, then prorate the numbers by the amount of our investment to yield an aggregate potential impact number for our social bond strategy. To aggregate bond information at the portfolio level, we use the portfolio level share of allocation and impact per bond. This is calculated as the percentage of a bond's total issuance held by the fund. In this report, we use the portfolio holdings on December 31, 2024, for this calculation.

Applying this methodology, we expect a total of 77,513 beneficiaries from projects to which funds were allocated from the bonds held by the Goldman Sachs Social Bond fund. This potential impact is derived from projects addressing social themes including health, education, access to affordable basic infrastructure, affordable housing and job creation. The population receiving the greatest potential benefit from projects financed by social bonds held in our portfolio was that of low-income individuals, targeted by nearly 70% of social bonds. The unemployed ranked second, benefiting from about 47% of social bonds.

The information contained on this page does not reflect binding characteristics of the portfolio for the purposes of the EU Sustainable Finance Disclosure Regulation ("SFDR").

The levels of benefit for other target populations are found in the chart below.

Target Populations Potentially Benefiting From Social Bonds Held in Our Portfolio

% of Projects



Source: Goldman Sachs Asset Management, Data Provided by Issuers. As of December 31, 2024. These metrics are at a point in time as of the date indicated and are subject to change over time.

The information contained on this page does not reflect binding characteristics of the portfolio for the purposes of the EU Sustainable Finance Disclosure Regulation ("SFDR").

INSIGHTS FROM ISSUERS

Motability Operations

The commercial organization that runs the UK's Motability Scheme



Matthew Hamilton-Jones

Chief Finance Officer43

What are the financing priorities of Motability Operations' social bond program?

Motability Operations runs the UK's Motability Scheme, which allows people receiving a qualifying disability allowance to lease a good-value vehicle. We provide 815,000 disabled customers with affordable mobility solutions that enhance their freedom and independence. We are overseen by a charity called the Motability Foundation, which works to fund, support, research and innovate so that all disabled people can make the journeys they choose.

The social bond program we have followed in recent years has allowed us to access funding from a wider investor base and at potentially lower cost. All proceeds from bonds issued under our Social Bond Framework are deployed to fund our single eligible social project – the fleet of vehicles (on a replenishing basis) that are leased by our customers. The Motability Scheme offers a range of vehicles, including petrol, diesel, electric and wheelchair accessible vehicles, to ensure customer choice and accessibility. For each vehicle, we provide an all-inclusive leasing package that includes insurance, maintenance and breakdown cover.

How has your approach to social bond issuance evolved?

We have learned the best ways to capture our social work and value over time. We updated our framework to align with the Social Bond Principles, including how we deliver against these benefits. We also outlined a new process for evaluating our work, overseen by our internal impact and sustainability committee. In 2023, we included further links on how the Motability Scheme supports the UN's Sustainable Development Goals. This evolution reflects our commitment to aligning with best practices in social finance, ensuring a strong connection between our work and our social purpose, and linking it back to the investments that organizations we work with are looking to make. Moving forward, we aim to work with the capital markets to develop new sustainability measures that complement our social bond offering.

43 This interview has been edited for brevity and clarity. The views and opinions expressed are those of the speaker as of March 7, 2025. They are presented here for informational purposes only, do not constitute any investment advice or recommendation by Goldman Sachs Asset Management, and may be subject to change. We have relied upon and assumed (without independent verification) the accuracy and completeness of such information and neither agree nor disagree with the content herein. Individual portfolio management teams for Goldman Sachs Asset Management may have views and opinions and/or make investment decisions that, in certain instances, may not always be consistent with the views and opinions expressed herein.

In your Social Bond Framework, you use four metrics to demonstrate how the use-of-proceeds criteria have been met: beneficiaries from activities, customer satisfaction scores, retention rates and affordability. How do customer satisfaction surveys and affordability analysis help shape the projects financed by the social bond?

Customer satisfaction surveys and affordability analysis help us understand the needs and preferences of our customers, ensuring that the services we provide are fit for purpose. Feedback from these surveys informs our decision-making process, allowing us to make necessary adjustments to improve customer satisfaction and the financial sustainability of our projects. By regularly collecting and analyzing customer feedback, we can identify areas for improvement and implement changes that enhance the customer experience.

Affordability analysis helps us ensure that our services remain accessible to those who need them most, allowing us to allocate resources effectively and maximize the social impact of our projects. For example, in October 2024 vehicles available with no advance payment accounted for 5% of our price list. In our latest Customer Satisfaction Index survey, we scored 9.5 out of 10 on average for overall satisfaction with the Motability Scheme.⁴⁴

What success stories would you highlight to illustrate the positive impact of the projects finance by your issuance of social bonds?

Laurie Williams, a professional wheelchair basketball player and Motability Scheme ambassador, has been a customer for as long as she can remember. At first, her parents drove her Motability Scheme car until she learned to drive. She now uses the car to get to training and enjoy her family life. When asked about the benefits of the scheme, she emphasized the freedom it can provide. "I would rather have my own independence than necessarily use public transport and have to rely on someone to help get me on and off a train." Laurie is also open to switching to an electric vehicle, although she notes that finding a charging point or having one installed in her flat might be challenging.

Another success story is Vicki, who has already made the switch to an EV. "I recently joined the Motability Scheme and named my car 'Indy' for 'independence.' As a para-equestrian, I'm outdoors all day, and I don't want to destroy what I love most. So it was a conscious decision to give electric cars a go. I wanted something that would be manageable and economical but also nice and smart-looking; a car that wasn't too big for me to drive or too scary for me to drive." Vicki also described the challenges she faces with the public charging network. "The lack of space is the first issue, and the second is that the chargers can be really heavy and hard to put into your charging port." Feedback like this from our customers strengthens our commitment to finding innovative solutions that keep our customers mobile now and in the future.

Our insights show that some customers face barriers when switching to electric vehicles. Nearly half have no off-street parking, and many find public charging both costly and difficult to access. That's why we're pushing ahead with a range of projects to tackle these challenges.

We are also working with an organization called CALLUM to explore what's possible for the future of electric wheelchair-accessible vehicles (eWAVs). Last year, we unveiled the design for eVITA, a pioneering eWAV concept. With the demonstrator vehicle set for completion this year, we aim to work closely with manufacturers to champion inclusive design, sharing insights, and embedding key principles from our research to ensure no one is left behind in the transition to EVs.

44 Ipsos interviewed 6,080 Motability Scheme car customers online between October 1-20, 2024.

The portfolio holding company shown above is as of the date indicated and may not be representative of future investments.



Social Bond Fund Overview

The Goldman Sachs Social Bond fund was launched in June 2022. It invests primarily in social bonds denominated in euros that have an investment-grade rating. We analyze social bonds and only invest in those that align with the Social Bond Principles and our proprietary Social Bond Assessment Methodology. We actively manage the fund using a disciplined investment process that combines top-down macro analysis with bottom-up issue(r) selection, with the aim to exploit alpha sources in a risk-conscious way.

European issuers – and euro-denominated bonds – play a leading role in the social bond market, just as they do in the green bond space. Euro-denominated bonds account for about 54% of the social bond market. At 15% of the market, the US dollar places a distant second in the ranking of currencies of issue, followed by the Korean won at 10%.⁴⁵ This weighting affects the regional allocation of the Goldman Sachs Social Bond fund much as it does for our green bond offerings.

45 Goldman Sachs Asset Management, Bloomberg. As of December 31, 2024.

Your capital is at risk and you may lose some or all of the capital you invest. There is no guarantee that objectives will be met. Further information in relation to the sustainability-related aspects of the funds can be found <u>here</u>. Diversification does not protect an investor from market risk and does not ensure a profit.

The charts below show the composition of the Goldman Sachs Social Bond fund at the end of 2024 by regional allocation, use-of-proceeds category and SDG exposure. These holdings contribute to SDGs that are key to promoting inclusive growth, led by SDG 11 (Sustainable Cities and Communities) and SDG 8 (Decent Work and Economic Growth).



Source: Goldman Sachs Asset Management. Data as of December 31, 2024. Note that the numbers in the top two charts on this page, "Breakdown of Projects by Use of Proceeds" and "Breakdown of Projects by Region," do not add up to 100. This is because issuers typically do not issue an allocation and impact report until one year after the date of issuance. As a result, we usually do not have allocation or regional data for recently issued social bonds. The numbers in the third chart, "UN Sustainable Development Goals Exposure," also do not add up to 100, but for a different reason: eligible projects can support more than one SDG.

Portfolio holdings and/or allocations shown above are as of the date indicated and may not be representative of future investments. The holdings and/or allocations shown may not represent all of the portfolio's investments. Future investments may or may not be profitable.

Impact Bond Strategy

Impact investments are made with the intention to generate measurable social and environmental benefits alongside a financial return.⁴⁶

46 "What You Need to Know About Impact Investing," Global Impact Investing Network website. As of February 29, 2024.

The Goldman Sachs Global Impact Corporate Bond fund seeks to achieve these goals by investing in three types of use-of-proceeds instruments issued by companies around the world: green and social bonds, which target specific environmental and social impacts; and sustainability bonds, which are used to finance both green and social projects and activities.

The inclusion of corporate sustainability bonds expands the investable universe for this fund. The sustainability bond market stands at \$1 trillion, larger than the social bond market at \$739 billion and more than a third of the \$2.7 trillion market in green bonds.⁴⁷ Corporate issuance accounts for 20% of the sustainability bond market, with financial issuers making up the largest share at about 11%. Corporate issuance accounts for a larger share of the sustainability bond market than it does in the social bond market, and the range of sectors represented is broader. In addition to financial issuers, the sectors include communications, healthcare and utilities.⁴⁸

An example of a corporate issuer of sustainability bonds is Autodesk, a specialist in 3-D design, engineering, and entertainment software and services. The California-based company uses sustainability bonds to finance green projects in areas such as eco-efficient products, sustainable water and wastewater management. It also finances social initiatives to address issues including improving access to quality education.⁴⁹ Another example is Merck & Co., a US health care company that delivers health solutions through its prescription medicines, vaccines, biologic therapies and animal health products. The New Jersey-based company uses proceeds of its sustainability bonds to finance social projects that address barriers to healthcare and health equity for underserved populations. It also finances green projects in areas including sustainable water, wastewater management and green buildings.⁵⁰

Issuance of sustainability bonds began to take off in 2018 with ICMA's publication of the Sustainability Bond Guidelines, which set out best practices for issuers.⁵¹ The guidelines defined sustainability bonds and specified their alignment with the core components of ICMA's previous guides for issuers of green and social bonds.

- 47 Goldman Sachs Asset Management, Bloomberg. As of December 31, 2024
- 48 Ibid.
- 49 "Sustainability Financing Framework," Autodesk. As of October 2021.
- 50 "Impact Report 2022/2023," Merck & Co. As of 2023.
- 51 "Sustainability Bond Guidelines," ICMA. As of June 2021.

Your capital is at risk and you may lose some or all of the capital you invest. There is no guarantee that objectives will be met. Further information in relation to the sustainability-related aspects of the funds can be found <u>here</u>. Diversification does not protect an investor from market risk and does not ensure a profit. Any reference to a specific company or security does not constitute a recommendation to buy, sell, hold or directly invest in the company or its securities.

Environmental and Social Impact

In assessing the expected impact of the Goldman Sachs Global Impact Corporate Bond fund, we track the same environmental and social impact metrics used for our green and social bond funds. Issuers of green, social and sustainability bonds provide data on relevant metrics in their annual impact reporting. We collect the available data reported by issuers of bonds held in our portfolios, then prorate the numbers by the amount of our investment to yield an aggregate expected impact number for our impact bond strategy.

To aggregate bond information at the portfolio level, we use the portfolio level share of allocation and impact per bond. This is calculated as the percentage of a bond's total issuance held by the fund. In this report, we use the portfolio holdings on December 31, 2024, for this calculation.

Applying this methodology, we expect 630 beneficiaries from social projects to which funds were allocated from the bonds held by the Goldman Sachs Global Impact Corporate Bond fund. On the environmental side, we expect aggregate

annual GHG emissions avoided in 2024 for the fund to be 2,444 metric tons of CO₂e. The fund allocates 79% to green assets and 8.3% to social assets. These numbers do not add up to 100% because allocation reports are not yet available for some bonds in the portfolio. The fund's other environmental impact metrics and impact per ≤ 1 million invested are shown below:

	Annual GHG Emissions Avoided (metric tons of CO2e)	Renewable Energy Capacity Added (MW)	Annual Renewable Energy Generation Output (GWh)	Annual Energy Saving (MWh)
Portfolio Total	2,444	2	3.62	210
Per €1 million Invested	110	_	0.16	9.6
Portfolio coverage	42.2%	18.7%	14.0%	16.3%

Source: Goldman Sachs Asset Management, Data Provided by Issuers. As of December 31, 2024. These metrics are at a point in time as of the date indicated and are subject to change over time.

The information contained on this page does not reflect binding characteristics of the portfolio for the purposes of the EU Sustainable Finance Disclosure Regulation ("SFDR").



Global Impact Corporate Bond Fund Overview

The Goldman Sachs Global Impact Corporate Bond Fund was launched in March 2023. It invests primarily in green, social and sustainability bonds denominated in Group of Ten currencies that have an investment-grade rating.⁵² We analyze green, social and sustainability bonds and invest in those that align with the Green Bond Principles, Social Bond Principles, Sustainability Bond Guidelines and our proprietary Green, Social and Sustainability Bond Assessment Methodology. We actively manage the fund using a process that combines top-down macro analysis with bottom-up issue(r) selection, with the aim to capture alpha sources in a risk-conscious way.

At the end of 2024, green bonds accounted for 83.6% of the Goldman Sachs Global Impact Corporate Bond fund's holdings. Social bonds made up 12.7% of the portfolio, with sustainability bonds at 2.3%.⁵³ This breakdown is reflected in the green and social use-of-proceeds allocation below.

The low percentage of sustainability bonds results in part from the rate at which we reject labeled bonds. After our analysis of bonds in the the relevant indices, we deemed 21.9% of green bonds and 14.5% of social bonds ineligible for investment. For sustainability bonds, the rate was 70.9%. Our analysts have identified that the criteria used by sustainability bond issuers to select green and social projects are increasingly aligned with market best practices.

The charts below show the composition of the Goldman Sachs Global Impact Corporate Bond fund at the end of 2024 by use-of-proceeds category, regional allocation, and SDG exposure. European issuers and euro-denominated bonds play a leading role in the combined market for green, social and sustainability bonds, often referred to by the initials GSS. Euro-denominated bonds account for 46% of this market, followed by the US dollar at 23% and the Chinese renminbi at 6%.⁵⁴ This weighting affects the fund's regional allocation.

The G-10 currencies are the US dollar, euro, pound sterling, Japanese yen, Australian dollar, New Zealand dollar, Canadian dollar, Swiss franc, Norwegian krone and Swedish krona.

- 53 Metrix. Data as of December 31, 2024.
- Goldman Sachs Asset Management, Bloomberg. As of December 31, 2024.

Your capital is at risk and you may lose some or all of the capital you invest. There is no guarantee that objectives will be met. Further information in relation to the sustainability-related aspects of the funds can be found <u>here</u>. Diversification does not protect an investor from market risk and does not ensure a profit.

Use of Proceeds Allocation

% of Projects Green Categories
% of Projects Social Categories

36.9% Alternative Energy 24.4% Green Buildings 9.0% **Energy Efficiency** 6.8% Low-carbon Transportation Sustainable Management 1.6% of Natural Resources 1.2% **Circular Economy** 1.0% Other Sustainable Water and 0.3% Wastewater Management 0.3% **Climate Change Adaptation** Pollution Prevention and Control 0.2% 0.0% Terrestrial and Aquatic Biodiversity 3.4% **Employment Generation** Socioeconomic Advancement 2.1% and Empowerment 1.7% Access to Essential Services 0.7% Affordable Housing Food Security and 0.4% Sustainable Food Systems Other 0.0% Affordable Basic Infrastructure 0.0%

Source: Goldman Sachs Asset Management. Data as of December 31, 2024. These metrics are at a point in time as of the date indicated and are subject to change over time.

Portfolio holdings and/or allocations shown above are as of the date indicated and may not be representative of future investments. The holdings and/or allocations shown may not represent all of the portfolio's investments. Future investments may or may not be profitable.

Regional Allocation





Source: Goldman Sachs Asset Management. Data as of December 31, 2024.

SDG Contribution



Source: Goldman Sachs Asset Management. Data as of December 31, 2024.

Portfolio holdings and/or allocations shown above are as of the date indicated and may not be representative of future investments. The holdings and/or allocations shown may not represent all of the portfolio's investments. Future investments may or may not be profitable.

Financed GHG Emissions

In this section, we present the financed emissions (in metric tons of CO_2e) per \$1 million investment in 2024 for the Goldman Sachs Global Impact Corporate Bond fund.⁵⁵

Financed GHG Emissions (tCO₂e)⁵⁶

	Scopes 1&2	Scope 3
GS Global Impact Corporate Bond	99.1	368
Benchmark	118.2	406.2

Source: MSCI, Goldman Sachs Asset Management. As of December 31, 2024.

55 This metric is not indicative of targets that the funds in question have set and aim to achieve.

56 The calculation for the financed emissions metric is as below according to MSCI:

 $\sum_{n}^{i} \left(\frac{current \ value \ of \ investment_{i}}{issuer's \ Scope \ 1 \ and \ Scope \ 2 \ GHG \ emissions_{i}} \right)$

current portfolio value (\$M)


Engaging With Issuers

The public markets investment businesses at Goldman Sachs Asset Management, including the Sustainable and Impact Fixed Income team, are committed to promoting and exercising effective stewardship among the companies in the portfolios we manage on behalf of our clients. The team seeks to communicate regularly with issuers to share our views on factors that may present credit risks. Our engagement aligns with categories set out in <u>Our Approach to Stewardship</u>, starting with investment research and monitoring. This helps provide the information we need to assess the eligibility of green, social and sustainability bonds.

The exchanges that the Sustainable and Impact Fixed Income team has with issuers in our portfolios and the wider labeled-bond space continue to form a key part of assessing issuers and bonds. The information contained in the documentation that issuers provide to the market is one way of communicating their green and social strategies, but we find that the rich data and stories gained through exchanges with issuers are invaluable.

Our researchers gather data on issuers' corporate strategies, investment and financing activities, management incentives, resource utilization, regulatory frameworks and their environmental and social impact. This helps us identify opportunities for fostering long-term value creation and determine the eligibility of issuers' green, social and impact bonds for inclusion in our strategies.

Our evaluation also places significant emphasis on climate-related factors including the alignment of issuers' climate targets with ambitious pathways, their related decarbonization strategies, climate governance frameworks and historical ESG trends. These elements are critical in assessing issuers' transition pathways and sustainability commitments.

To enhance our research and analysis we leverage our propriety platform Fluent, which facilitates tracking of issuer insights and engagement. This tool, which is available to all members of the public markets investing team, helps incorporate material findings into investment decisions for relevant strategies.

The engagement/proxy voting highlights presented here outline examples of Goldman Sachs & Co. LLC Sachs Asset Management initiatives, there is no assurance that Goldman Sachs' engagement/proxy voting directly caused the outcome described herein.

In 2024, our investment research and monitoring continued to focus on four core areas:

- Pre-issuance investment research (Type 1).
- Post-issuance investment research (Type 2).
- Regions and sectors with limited historical issuance of labeled bonds (Type 3).
- Investment research on specific topics (Type 4).

Our engagements are carried out proactively by the team and when issuers reach out to us directly. The reasons for this engagement can include:

- New labeled-bond issuance on the market (pre-issuance research).
- Questions about impact reporting (post-issuance research).
- Pre-market conversations with issuers from regions and
- sectors with limited historical issuance of labeled bonds.
- When we have specific topics that we want to address.
 The team also aims to communicate with the issuers held in our portfolios every two years.

We have a comprehensive set of questions for issuers that cover key topics including:

- Climate goals and targets.
- Climate strategy.
- Cimate governance.
- Thematic areas such as circular economy, biodiversity, human rights and just transition.

We also assess impact reporting and historical GHG-emission trends. All these topics help us develop meaningful key performance indicators for our investment research and monitoring, strengthening our ability to track issuers' progress. These engagements allow us to gather the necessary data for our internal labeling system in Fluent and to track and monitor issuers within our bond strategies.

2024 in Review

The Sustainable and Impact Fixed Income team engaged with 170 issuers across regions in 2024 to support our strategies. Most of these issuers – 64% – are based in Western Europe, followed by three regions that account for 5% of the total: East Asia, the Nordics and North America. Other regions account for a smaller share of engagements, such as Oceania, Southeast Asia and South America.

Our engagements mostly focused on a combination of green and social topics, including biodiversity, circular economy, just transition and human rights; impact reporting; the EU taxonomy for sustainable activities and the European Green Bond Standard. Most interactions were conducted in virtual meetings; other methods included written communication, industry conferences and onsite meetings.

"Over the years, our rich discussion with labeled bond issuers has allowed us to enhance our investment research and monitoring and enabled us to track sentiments and emerging themes in the market on topics such as biodiversity and just transition. Our dialogue with issuers has become a key part of the assessment process for us, and we value these discussions greatly."



Isobel Edwards Head of Sustainable and Impact Fixed Income Research

Source: Goldman Sachs Asset Management. As of December 31, 2024.

Our Engagements in 2024 Spanned the Globe, With Western Europe Occupying the Top Slot



Source: Goldman Sachs Asset Management. As of December 31, 2024.

Most of the issuers we engaged with in 2024 have set goals to achieve net zero greenhouse gas emissions by 2050, and several aim to reach net zero even earlier. Most of these issuers have established formal decarbonization strategies that include short- and medium-term targets for GHG emissions reduction. Their strategies focus primarily on climate-mitigation initiatives; only a subset incorporate carbon offsets, typically limited to residual GHG emissions. In terms of corporate governance, most issuers have integrated ESG-related key performance indicators into executive remuneration frameworks, reflecting a strong commitment to aligning leadership incentives with sustainability objectives.

The sector breakdown of the issuers we engaged with in 2024 changed little from the previous year. As the following chart shows, two categories, financials and sovereign, accounted for nearly 60% of our research engagements, followed by utilities, materials, and others.

The engagement/proxy voting highlights presented here outline examples of Goldman Sachs & Co. LLC Sachs Asset Management initiatives, there is no assurance that Goldman Sachs' engagement/proxy voting directly caused the outcome described herein.



2024 Research Investment and Monitoring Engagement by Issuer Sector

Source: Goldman Sachs Asset Management. As of December 31, 2024.

For further details about the Green, Social and Impact Bonds team's investment research and monitoring in 2024, please see the appendix of this report. ■

The engagement/proxy voting highlights presented here outline examples of Goldman Sachs & Co. LLC Sachs Asset Management initiatives, there is no assurance that Goldman Sachs' engagement/proxy voting directly caused the outcome described herein.

INSIGHTS FROM ISSUERS

Knorr-Bremse

A German producer of braking systems for rail and commercial vehicles



Kai Gloystein Head of Corporate Finance and Treasury



Marcus Hoffmann, Vice President ESG⁵⁷

Knorr-Bremse recently issued its first green bond.⁵⁸ What drove your decision to enter the market?

We had been exploring the possibility of raising financing with green instruments for some time, driven by our long-standing commitment to sustainability and the transition to a low-carbon economy. We believe that our business is well positioned to help advance this transition, and we are always on the lookout for ways to enhance our ESG performance.

Our green-financing journey began in 2021 with the issuance of a syndicated loan that incorporated sustainability criteria. Recognizing the importance of labeled bonds, we decided to incorporate them into our financing strategy. We started with sustainability-linked bonds, but soon realized that green bonds, guided by the EU taxonomy for sustainable activities, would further enhance our commitment. We sought guidance from investors to determine the most suitable financial instruments for our goals, and our decision to issue a green bond was influenced by feedback from leading investors.

How did investor input help shape Knorr-Bremse's Green Finance Framework?

Feedback from stakeholders and our second-party opinion provider prompted us to move away from a focus on sustainability-linked bonds toward a broader Green Finance Framework. This shift was motivated by the goal of delivering impact for investors as well as the need to align with evolving market standards and expectations.

During our discussions with investors, we received valuable input on the importance of transparency and the need to demonstrate the clear impact of our investments. For example, investors expressed a strong interest in understanding the concrete impact our projects have on climate change mitigation. In this context we highlighted that the rail sector – one of our focus sectors – was already making a significant contribution to advancing low-emission transportation. We aim to further strengthen this sector with our products by helping improve energy and emissions efficiency, availability and eco-friendliness.

- 57 This interview has been edited for brevity and clarity. The views and opinions expressed are those of the speaker as of March 7, 2024. They are presented here for informational purposes only, do not constitute any investment advice or recommendation by Goldman Sachs Asset Management, and may be subject to change. We have relied upon and assumed (without independent verification) the accuracy and completeness of such information and neither agree nor disagree with the content herein. Individual portfolio management teams for Goldman Sachs Asset Management may have views and opinions and/or make investment decisions that, in certain instances, may not always be consistent with the views and opinions expressed herein. The emissions goal is an 80% reduction based on 2020 levels.
- 58 "Knorr-Bremse Issues First Green Bond," Knorr-Bremse press release. As of September 24, 2024.

The portfolio holding company shown above is as of the date indicated and may not be representative of future investments.

With this in mind, we also made clear that we would not be able to measure our impact on rail emissions precisely, and that we would instead disclose our overall contribution to the sector. This transparent explanation was appreciated and endorsed by investors.

You have discussed climate-action initiatives such as energy-efficiency measures, expanding the use of renewable energies, and introducing an internal carbon-pricing mechanism to guide capital expenditure decisions. Can you provide more details on how these initiatives have been implemented and their impact so far?

We have made significant progress in implementing a range of climate initiatives to enhance our sustainability performance. One key initiative is the improvement of energy efficiency across our operations. We have invested in advanced technologies and processes to reduce fossil-based energy consumption and increase efficiency.

We have also expanded our use of renewable energy. As of November 2024, we had achieved a yearon-year increase of about 60% in our own renewable-energy production, and we plan to achieve production capacity of more than 10 GWh by next year. In addition, our goal is to source at least 95% of the electricity we purchase from renewable providers, with a focus on solar and wind power. We adhere to strict quality criteria, wherever possible, ensuring that the main share of renewable power we use comes from wind or solar, and that generation installations are not older than five years.

Our internal carbon-pricing mechanism guides our capital expenditure decisions by assigning a monetary value to carbon emissions associated with investments, thereby incentivizing low-carbon technologies and projects. By incorporating carbon pricing into our decision-making process, we aim to reduce our carbon footprint, reduce exposure to future cost risks and drive sustainable growth.

While we are still in the process of collecting and analyzing data for 2024, preliminary results indicate that these initiatives had a positive impact on our sustainability performance. We are committed to continuous improvement and will continue to monitor and report on our progress in achieving our climate-action goals.

The portfolio holding company shown above is as of the date indicated and may not be representative of future investments.

Our Investment Approach

In our view, a bond's green or social credentials are determined not just by the projects it finances but also by the issuer's strategy. Our analysts and portfolio managers look beyond the labels and carry out their own evaluation of a company's activities and plans to adopt more sustainable business practices. We follow a two-step process: robust assessment followed by an active investment approach based on credit analysis. Our process begins with screening for alignment with relevant industry standards: the Green Bond Principles, Social Bond Principles and Sustainability Bond Guidelines. At this stage, we also assess sector and project criteria as well as the ESG profile of the issuer. This process yields a selection of bonds with significant environmental or social impact.

Green, social and sustainability bonds are self-labeled by their issuers, so we review information from the issuer and other external sources, but carry out our own assessment. Bonds must be tracked at issuer and project level to assess whether all investments are in line with industry guidelines and our standards. Inconsistent availability of data can make it challenging to determine the green or social strategies of issuers, and some companies can issue these bonds for individual projects with no intention of addressing broader sustainability issues. We think it is imperative to analyze quantitative and qualitative indicators at project, company and even market level on an ongoing basis.

As a result of our selection process, the current rejection rates for our green, social and impact bond portfolios based on the assessed bonds in the reference indexes are listed below:

	Goldman Sachs Green Bond	Goldman Sachs Corporate Green Bond	Goldman Sachs Sovereign Green Bond	Goldman Sachs USD Green Bond	Goldman Sachs Social Bond	Goldman Sachs Global Impact Corporate Bond
Benchmark	Bloomberg MSCI Euro Green Bond (NR) 10% Capped Index	Bloomberg Euro Green Corporate Bond 5% Issuer Capped	Bloomberg MSCI Euro Green Bond Treasury and Government- Related 10% Capped Index	Bloomberg MSCI USD Green Bond Index	iBoxx EUR Investment Grade Social Bonds (10% Issuer Cap) Index	iBoxx Global Green, Social & Sustainability Bonds Corporate 100% EUR Hedged
Rejection Rate	19%	24%	14%	59%	15%	41%

Source: Goldman Sachs Asset Management. As of December 31, 2024. This metric is at a point in time and is subject to change.

For investors, impact reporting is essential. In our view, investment in green, social and sustainability bonds can enable clients to reduce their carbon footprint and increase the social impact of their fixed income portfolios without sacrificing liquidity or returns. We back up this conviction with transparency in fund-specific documents and broader reports such as this one.

Goldman Sachs Asset Management in its sole discretion and without notice may periodically update or change the process for conducting its ESG assessment and implementation of its ESG views in portfolios, including the format and content of such analysis and the tools and/or data used to perform such analysis. No one factor or consideration is determinative in the fundamental research and asset selection process. Goldman Sachs Asset Management may invest in a security prior to completion of an ESG assessment. Instances in which ESG assessments may not be completed for a specific security prior to investment include but are not limited to new issuance, in-kind transfers, corporate actions, and/or certain short term holdings. Moreover, ESG information, whether from an external and/or internal source, is, by nature and in many instances, based on a qualitative and subjective assessment. An element of subjectivity and discretion is therefore inherent to the interpretation and use of ESG data. The relevance and weightings of specific ESG factors to or within the investment process vary across asset classes, sectors and strategies and no one factor or consideration is determinative.

Selecting Bonds for Investment

As funds which make disclosures pursuant to Article 9 of the EU's Sustainable Finance Disclosure Regulation (SFDR), our green, social and global impact corporate bond funds aim to help create a more sustainable future. They do this by investing in bonds that are considered sustainable investments in accordance with Goldman Sachs Asset Management's Sustainable Investment Framework. This requires each bond to go through a screening process including an assessment of its contribution to an environmental or social objective, provided it does not significantly harm other such objectives by consideration of certain mandatory indicators for adverse impacts on sustainability factors. This assessment also considers whether the issuer follows good governance practices, in particular with respect to sound management structures, employee relations, remuneration of staff and tax compliance. Further details may be found in the precontractual disclosure and prospectus for each fund.

We follow a two-step process for assessing the contribution of a bond to an environmental or social objective. The first step is the same for all issuers: we assess whether the activities financed by a bond meet our thresholds and criteria. If they don't, the bond is not eligible for investment.

Our green bond assessment methodology incorporates the latest project-level assessment criteria from the Green Bond Principles, the taxonomies developed by the EU and the Climate Bonds Initiative, and our proprietary assessment methodology. For social bonds, we rely on project-level criteria in the Social Bond Principles and on our proprietary assessment methodology. It is updated regularly to reflect the latest scientific and regulatory developments.

The second step in our analysis differs for corporate and sovereign issuers. For corporate green, social and sustainability bonds, we determine whether the issuer meets our proprietary ESG assessment approach, sector-specific criteria, and whether it has developed a transition strategy to commit to achieving net zero emissions. In cases where serious controversies concerning an issuer have been reported, its bonds are excluded.

Companies involved in lower-risk controversies can also be excluded if the events occurred in the past two years. In these cases, we would open a dialogue with the company to determine whether it has taken adequate steps to address the issue. If this dialogue gives us sufficient confidence in the company's strategy, it can be deemed eligible provided it meets all other criteria.

For sovereign issuers, the second step is to undertake a proprietary quantitative and qualitative analysis process that assesses various factors including any sustainability progress, cross-border conflicts the country is involved in, and human-rights due diligence considerations. The bond is eligible for investment if all criteria are met.



Source: Goldman Sachs Asset Management. As of December 31, 2024.

Further information in relation to the sustainability-related aspects of the Fund can be found <u>here</u>.

Impact Bond Program, Climate Transition and Active Selection

As part of this year's impact report, we have explored the connections between an issuer's adoption of a labeled-bond program and the ambition of its climate-transition plans. This section draws on issuer-level data to identify trends for labeled bond issuers and their transition ambitions.⁵⁹ First, we look at the net zero targets of green bond and broader fixed income⁶⁰ issuers that have been approved by the Science Based Targets Initiative (SBTi).⁶¹

Second, we analyze the Goldman Sachs Green Bond fund portfolio and its benchmark, comparing issuers with GHG emission-reduction targets and targets across all emission scopes. This analysis gives an indication of how active selection affects the fund in terms of the average number of issuers with GHG emission-reduction targets.

Climate Targets

We have seen a gradual move in the market toward increasing the alignment of labeled-bond issuance and issuers' company-level transition strategies. One example of this is the European Green Bond Standard. To comply with this voluntary standard, issuers need to complete a pre-issuance review, including a factsheet that explains how the bond is expected to contribute to the issuer's environmental strategy. This includes how the proceeds of a bond are expected to contribute to the issuer's key performance indicators for taxonomy-aligned assets, turnover, capital and operational expenditures, and the issuer's transition plan.⁶² Based on this trend, we expect labeled-bond issuers to focus increasingly on their overall climate strategy before coming to market. Non-sovereign entities within the Bloomberg Global-Aggregate Total Return Index include both pure conventional bond issuers and those that have tapped the green bond market. Some green bond issuers have committed to 100% green bond financing, but most are hybrid issuers that also issue conventional bonds.

In our analysis, we compared the SBTi-approved targets of pure conventional bond issuers and hybrid green bond issuers with varying levels of green bond issuance. The targets are broken down into three categories based on their alignment with global-warming scenarios: 1.5°C, well below 2°C, and 2°C.⁶³ The level of green bond issuance is represented by the percentage of outstanding green bonds relative to total bonds outstanding.

Our index analysis revealed that the majority of issuers with SBTi-approved targets are aligned with the 1.5-degree scenario, which requires reaching net zero more quickly than the other scenarios. Hybrid issuers whose outstanding bonds include at least 20% green bonds are far more likely to have SBTi-approved targets than pure conventional bond issuers. The prevalence of approved targets increases as the share of green bonds rises; among issuers with at least half of their outstanding issuance in green bonds, 63.5% based on market-value percentage have approved targets.

60 This includes conventional bonds and use-of-proceeds and sustainability-linked bonds.

- 62 "REGULATION (EU) 2023/2631 OF THE EUROPEAN PARLIAMENT AND OF THE COUNCIL of 22 November 2023 on European Green Bonds and optional disclosures for bonds marketed as environmentally sustainable and for sustainability-linked bonds," EUR-Lex website. As of November 30, 2023.
- 63 SBTi reviews and validates targets and identifies their temperature alignment, which indicates the degree of global temperature increase compared with preindustrial levels that companies are aligned with, based on their scope 1 and 2 targets. The Paris Agreement aims to pursue efforts to limit the temperature increase to 1.5°C.

⁵⁹ This analysis covers issuers in the Bloomberg Global-Aggregate Total Return Index, and is not necessarily indicative of issuers that are held in GSAM portfolios. In this analysis, the index serves as a proxy for the overall bond market.

⁶¹ The Science Based Targets initiative is one of the organizations that develop standards, tools and guidance which allow companies to set greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions reductions targets that are science based and in line with what is needed to keep global heating below catastrophic levels and reach net-zero by 2050 at latest. See "Who We Are," SBTi website. As of March 4, 2025.

We also found that below the 20% green bond threshold, hybrid issuers are less likely to have SBTi-approved targets than pure conventional bond issuers. While this may seem counter-intuitive, it supports our observation that infrequent or opportunistic green bond issuers may be less committed to supporting the climate transition than conventional issuers. Below 3% green bonds, no more than 12% of issuers have approved targets; that figure rises to 21% at 5% green bonds and 23% at 10%.

We think these results underscore the importance of holistic transition and capital-expenditure plans, which more frequent issuers typically have in place. For less frequent issuers, developing these plans could help establish their credibility in the green bond market, in our view. In our analysis, we also compared the Goldman Sachs Green Bond fund with its benchmark to determine if our proprietary green bond selection process would affect the percentage of issuers with GHG-emission reduction targets and targets encompassing all three emission scopes. We found that nearly 79% of issuers in the fund's portfolio had emission-reduction targets, compared with about 70% in the benchmark index. For targets across all emission scopes, the fund came in at nearly 62% versus 52% for the benchmark.⁶⁴ In our view, these differences are likely driven by the fund's active security selection process, which assesses various elements of the green transition using Goldman Sachs Asset Management's proprietary green bond assessment methodology.



Source: MSCI, Goldman Sachs Asset Management, as of 31st December 2024.

Note: Bloomberg Global-Aggregate Total Return Index is used for this analysis. Hybrid green bond issuer refers to issuers that issue both green and conventional bonds. We differentiate issuers by the percentage of their outstanding green bond within their total bond outstanding. For example, hybrid green bond issuer (>=10%) means the issuer group that have over 10% of their outstanding bond being green bond.

64 MSCI, Goldman Sachs Asset Management. As of December 31, 2024.

Tracking The Market

Goldman Sachs Asset Management's database of green, social and sustainability bonds in the market, tracks 3,170 bonds issued in 64 countries and regions. We primarily track green, social and sustainability bonds denominated in Group of Ten currencies that are constituents of the Bloomberg Barclays MSCI Global Green Bond Index, the iBoxx Global Social Bonds Index and the iBoxx Global Green, Social & Sustainability Bonds Corporate Index. The database has three sections for each bond: assessment, project allocation and impact reporting.

This extensive information is essential to our green and social bond strategies, supporting portfolio management, bond selection and impact reporting. We began tracking green bonds when we launched our first strategy in 2016. Since then, we have refined our approach and the way we gather and record information. As the market has become more sophisticated and the range of data has improved, our database has developed along with it. We add bonds to our database when they are launched and track them from that point onward whether we invest in them or not. As a result, the database contains bonds that we label as non-green, non-social and non-sustainability. This allows us to have a clear overview of the market.

The Sustainable and Impact Fixed Income team documents the assessment process in the assessment section of the database. This includes the alignment of the issuer's green, social or sustainability bond framework with the relevant ICMA principles, the project-level alignment with our assessment methodology and the issuer-level sustainability assessment. The project allocation and impact reporting sections record the post-issuance reporting metrics sourced from issuers.

Our proprietary database:

- Tracks and assesses 3,170 **bonds** covering 14 sectors in 66 countries/regions.
- 9/2 bonds (42%) labeled non-green/ineligible for our green/impact bond portfolio.
- 128 bonds (32%) labeled non-social/ineligible for our social/impact bond portfolio.
- 344 bonds (73%) labeled non-sustainability/ ineligible for our impact bond portfolio.
- Impact data on 1,093 bonds are available in the database.

Source: Goldman Sachs Asset Management. Data as of February 2, 2024. These metrics are at a point in time and subject to change.

"The labeled bond market moves quickly and we aim to stay in line with the latest progress in the market and adjust our framework for bond selection accordingly. Topics such as how to consider transitioning issuers, enabling technologies, and opening up the market



to more emerging market issuers were recurring discussion points in 2024."

Isobel Edwards Head of Sustainable and Impact Fixed Income Research

Impact Calculation Methodology

It has become standard practice in the green, social and sustainability bond markets for issuers to report on allocation and impact, following the recommendations in the Green Bond Principles, Social Bond Principles and Sustainability Bond Guidelines.⁶⁵ Reporting is also a key element of the European Green Bond Standard, which is intended to provide issuers with a tool to show they are funding green projects aligned with the EU's taxonomy of environmentally sustainable economic activities.

While some attempts have been made to standardize use of proceeds reporting, practices still differ widely across industries and regions, especially in calculation methodology. In their regular post-issuance tracking of issuers' allocation and impact report, the analysts in our Sustainable and Impact Fixed Income team examine the methodology used in metrics reporting, including their underlying assumptions and baselines, and engage where necessary to help issuers improve the level of transparency and produce more harmonized reporting.

Our impact metric calculation is based on the data we have assessed and collected in our green and social bond database. When tracking bonds, we follow a methodology that allows us to harmonize the diverse allocation and impact figures reported by issuers and report in a transparent way on the projects we help finance via the bonds we hold.

Impact Metrics Collection

The annual allocation and impact report is usually published one year after a green or social bond is issued. We analyze the report based on our Impact Reporting Requirements, Recommendation and Aggregation Methodology and follow up with the issuer if the reporting does not follow best practice or key information is missing.

Use of proceeds and regional allocation are usually reported clearly by issuers and the information can be used without further adjustments. Exceptions to this are when issuers report using their own self-defined categories. In this case, we assess the projects being financed and assign them to the corresponding categories in the Green Bond Principles or Social Bond Principles. Issuers have different views on how projects contribute to the SDGs. Some report conservatively, while others include both direct and indirect contributions. In our database, we record only direct financing when documenting bond-level SDG contributions.

Impact is the reporting area with the most varied assessment and reporting methodologies. In terms of reporting scope alone, there could be three methodologies. Ranked from the most general to the most specific, these are reporting based on: (1) the total green or social asset pool at company level; (2) the aggregate green, social or sustainability bond financing; and (3) on each individual project financed by a green, social or sustainability bond. As a result, we usually prorate any impact figures that are not based on specific financing. We then apply a standardized calculation of impact intensity and cost efficiency, which is defined as the impact figures per $\in 1$ million invested. The expected impact attributable to the bond is then calculated using impact intensity/cost efficiency and the size of the issue.

In the case where impact calculation methodologies, baselines or assumptions are not available in the report, analysts will reach out to the issuer to request the missing information and check if they are aligned with the local market where the projects are located. Key information missing on impact proration and methodologies might make it difficult for analysts to consider the reporting in the impact metrics collection process. If a green or social bond's proceeds are not fully allocated in the first year, the issuer will usually update the allocation and impact report annually until that happens. Our database notifies the investment team on the issue anniversary of each bond we track, so our analysts can check and update the allocation and impact figures.

65 "Green Bond Principles: Voluntary Process Guidelines for Issuing Green Bonds," ICMA. As of June 2021. "Social Bond Principles: Voluntary Process Guidelines for Issuing Social Bonds," ICMA. As of June 2023. "Sustainability Bond Guidelines," ICMA. As of June 2021.

Impact Reporting Engagement

It is important that use-of-proceeds bond issuers could report their generated impact in a way that allows investors' comparison and aggregation at least within the same industry or project type. Industry guidelines have been helpful in that regard and the analysts with the Sustainable and Impact Fixed Income team have also been reached out by the issuers to share suggestions on how they could better present their report so that the report and metrics could be of most useful for the audiences.

Some suggestions that the analysts mention in the feedback include using commonly adopted metrics recommended by industry guidelines so that it is possible for investors to aggregate for portfolio-level reporting. We also recommend that issuers do not claim one-off impact (e.g. installed renewable energy capacity) for projects that are being refinanced, thus minimizing the possibility of double counting across the industry. It is also helpful when issuers specify if impacts are reported ex- ante or ex-post, which helps clarify whether they have already been realized or are yet to be achieved.

These engagements will not affect the analyst's impact metrics collection process. They are rather the summary and thoughts from the analysts along with the discussion with the market participants with the intention of improving the level of harmonization for the impact reporting.

Portfolio Impact Aggregation

To aggregate bond information at the portfolio level, we use the portfolio level share of allocation and impact per bond. This is calculated as the percentage of a bond's total issuance held by the fund. In this report, we use the portfolio holdings on December 31, 2024, for this calculation. The aggregated fund level use of proceeds, regional allocation, SDG contribution and impact metrics can then be derived by adding up the portfoliolevel share of weighted bond allocations, SDG contributions and impacts. In order to facilitate the coordination of the impact reporting across different investors, we tend to not count impact generated by certain enabling activities and certain OPEX in our portfolio level impact aggregation. For example, in the case of transmission and distribution of electricity project, the greenhouse gas emissions avoided from the electricity being transmitted will not be counted in our portfolio level impact aggregation. We deem the impact is attributable to the electricity generation project. Yet if the greenhouse gas emissions saving is derived from the grid loss reduction, the impact is accepted to be integrated on the portfolio level.

This methodology tends to yield a conservative estimate of portfolio-level impact for two main reasons. The first is that impact data are not available for newly issued bonds, because issuers usually only publish their allocation and impact reports one year after issuance. For the newly issued bonds in our portfolio, we usually look for older bonds from the same issuer. If both the new and older bonds fall under the same framework and are subject to the same eligible asset pool, we assume the new issue's impact is the same as that of the older bond. If a bond is the first from a given issuer, however, we adopt a conservative approach and assume its impact is zero.

The second reason arises when we have doubts as to how an issuer arrives at the impact figures they provide. If our concerns remain unresolved after dialogue with the issuer, we again adopt a conservative approach and assume the bond's impact is zero.

Sustainable and Impact Fixed Income Team⁶⁶



Bram Bos Global Head of Sustainable and Impact Fixed Income



Annemieke Coldeweijer PM Sustainable Credit



Isobel Edwards

Head of Sustainable and Impact Fixed Income Research



Green, Social and Impact Bond Research Analysis

Yun-Chun Liu

Kaili Mao



Jurre Halsema PM Green, Social and Impact Bonds



Roel van Broekhuizen PM Green, Social and Impact Bonds



Panagiota Batziou

Green, Social and Impact

Bond Research Analysis

Green, Social and Impact Bond Research Analysis



Douglas Farquhar Client PM Sustainable and Impact Fixed Income



Alexander Bergmueller Client PM Sustainable and Impact Fixed Income



Francesco Tassiano Green, Social and Impact Bond Research Analysis

66 Team composition as of March 19, 2025.



Key Investment Research and Monitoring Outcomes in 2024

The EU taxonomy for sustainable activities and the European Green Bond Standard have been much discussed in the green bond market in recent years. About half of the issuers we engaged with in 2024 have assessed their alignment with the taxonomy. The financial and government-related sectors are leading this trend, while only 2% of the other corporate sectors have conducted this exercise. A smaller number of issuers have considered issuing bonds under the European Green Bond Standard; just a quarter of issuers have looked at this option.

We did not observe a strong correlation between issuers' responses on the taxonomy and standard, suggesting that while some issuers have conducted a taxonomy assessment, they do not necessarily view the standard as part of their plans. An issuer from the financials sector indicated that they would rather wait to see how the market reacts to the new European standard, especially to first movers, before issuing any bonds aligned with it. Other reasons for the lack of interest in the standard included a lack of internal capacity, an insufficient pipeline of projects that meet the requirements, and existing partial alignment with the taxonomy.

More Issuers Are Considering Alignment With the EU's Taxonomy Than With Its Green Bond Standard



Source: Goldman Sachs Asset Management. As of December 31, 2024.

Note: Financials include banks, insurers, and other financial services providers. Utilities cover electricity, gas, and water. Government-related entities include agencies, government and public sector enterprises. Corporates (excluding Utilities) encompass all other industries, such as consumer, energy, and industrials.

Four Key Themes

Biodiversity, circular economy, just transition and human rights are the four core themes in our investment research and monitoring. The goal of this engagement is to improve our understanding of how issuers identify and design company policies to address their positive and negative impacts across these four areas. The following chart shows how approaches to these themes differ between financial and non-financial issuers.

Engagement in 2024 Revealed Key Differences Between Issuers on Our Core Themes



Source: Goldman Sachs Asset Management. As of December 31, 2024.

Biodiversity

Biodiversity loss can pose a key investment risk that can manifest itself in a company's operations or supply chain. Biodiversity plays a role in ensuring the resilience and preservation of natural-capital assets on which society and business depend. However, land use change, climate change, exploitation and pollution are driving biodiversity and ecosystem loss, creating risks and opportunities for society, business, and investors.⁶⁷ With this in mind, we asked issuers if and how they incorporate biodiversity into their business operations or lending activities, or are considering doing so.

We found that issuers in the utilities sector were still leading the way in having biodiversity-related projects or initiatives in place. Most financial institutions were at the stage of examining the nature-related exposure of their loan books and how to integrate biodiversity into their analysis. As a result, they were less likely to have biodiversity-related projects or initiatives in place than non-financials. Overall, the number of issuers considering integrating biodiversity into their business or lending activities increased slightly compared with 2023, reflecting the increasing importance of this topic in the market.

We have established metrics to assess issuers' commitments and actions in this thematic area. These include the presence of a biodiversity policy or formal commitment, board-level oversight of biodiversity matters, the presence of biodiversity impact and dependencies assessment, defined biodiversity targets, and regular publications or disclosures on biodiversity-related efforts and progress.

The chart below shows European issuers leading the way on biodiversity metrics, with the majority having biodiversity-related commitments and board oversight. Almost half of the European issuers we engaged with conduct biodiversity impact and dependencies assessments and produce relevant publications. Issuers in Asia and the Americas have undertaken more limited actions.



European Issuers Are Leading the Way on Biodiversity Actions and Commitments

Source: Goldman Sachs Asset Management. As of December 31, 2024.

67 "Nature," Principles for Responsible Investment website. As of April 23, 2025.

Circular Economy

The new technologies that are driving the transition to a low-carbon economy, such as clean transportation and renewable energy, often rely on elements – lithium and cobalt, for example – that must be mined, which can lead to negative environmental and social consequences. To raise awareness about responsible sourcing, we asked relevant issuers if and how they incorporate circular-economy initiatives related to the green transition into their business operations or lending activities, or are considering doing so.

We found that non-financial issuers, especially in the utilities sector, are more likely to have circular-economy initiatives or targets in place. Examples include recycling solar panels or wind turbines, which can reduce the need to dispose of disused units in landfills and to mine minerals to produce replacements. As in 2023, financial institutions were less likely than other issuers to have incorporated circular-economy considerations into their lending activities. This is a nascent topic still in the market, however, and we think the situation could change in the future.

To assess issuers' commitment to the circular economy, we check for actions including:

- A circular-economy policy or formal commitment.
- Board-level oversight of circular-economy matters.
- An assessment of circular-economy risks and opportunities.
- Defined circular-economy targets.
- Regular publications or disclosure on circular economy-related efforts and progress.

Our investment research and monitoring revealed that about half of issuers had implemented policies, board oversight, risk assessments and targets, and publications related to circular-economy efforts. Most of the issuers with circular-economy considerations are in Europe and operate in the utilities sector. Our analysis highlights that while progress is being made, some issuers are still lagging in adopting comprehensive circular-economy targets. In our view, this underscores the need for more investor-issuer dialogue on this topic.

A Nearly Even Split on Circular-Economy Commitments Shows the Need for Further Engagement



Source: Goldman Sachs Asset Management. As of December 31, 2024.

Just Transition

The concept of just transition describes the goal of ensuring that the shift to a sustainable, low-carbon economy is equitable and inclusive, minimizing social and economic disruptions while maximizing opportunities.⁶⁸ The World Bank has introduced a Just Transition Taxonomy,⁶⁹ offering clear guidance on investments that support equitable and inclusive outcomes, particularly for coal-dependent communities. Organizations like the London School of Economics emphasize that finance will play a critical role in achieving this goal by aligning investments with the principles of just transition, mobilizing capital, and addressing social protections and reskilling needs.⁷⁰ In the EU, legislative proposals and tools such as the Just Transition Fund and Social Climate Fund, aim to support vulnerable workers, communities and regions. In our view, progress depends on integrating robust frameworks, fostering social dialogue, and ensuring adequate funding, much of which remains under discussion.⁷¹

The social equity of the transition to a low-carbon economy is a key topic, and we have given it significant attention in our discussions with issuers. This topic is more of a focus for utilities than other sectors in the labeled bond market at the moment because of their role in the energy transition. Overall, the number of issuers from non-financial sectors that are considering putting just transition initiatives in place increased slightly in 2024 from the previous year.

To gauge issuers' commitments and actions in this area, we use metrics that encompass commitments to:

- Decarbonize in line with just transition principles.
- Support workers affected by decarbonization.
- Consult with and seek consent from affected communities.
- Develop and disclose just transition plans with key performance indicators.

We found that approximately 40% of issuers had committed to transition in accordance with defined just transition principles. All these issuers were European utilities. In addition, 29% of issuers had developed a just transition plan, though only 14% of the issuers disclose key performance indicators related to just transition.



Issuer Commitments to Just Transition Are Increasing as the Topic Gains Wider Attention.

Source: Goldman Sachs Asset Management. As of December 31, 2024.

68 "World Social Protection Report 2024-26," International Labour Organization. As of 2024.

69 "Just Transition Taxonomy," The World Bank. As of June 2024.

70 "White Paper: Leveraging the Spectrum of Finance for Just Transitions," Institute for Human Rights and Business, Just Transition Finance Lab. As of December 19, 2024.

71 See for example "Towards a just transition legislative proposal and EU policy tools that enable a more social European Green Deal," European Economic and Social Committee record of proceedings. As of December 4, 2024.

Human Rights

Human rights are fundamental to the dignity and well-being of individuals, yet their relevance extends far beyond moral considerations, in our view. For companies and organizations, respecting human rights is integral to fostering trust, mitigating risks and sustaining long-term success in an interconnected world. Businesses operate within complex ecosystems where their actions directly impact workers, communities and society.

In 2024, we asked issuers about their adherence to relevant global human rights standards, their human rights policies and processes, and how they manage human rights issues. With the introduction last year of regulatory frameworks including the EU Corporate Sustainability Due Diligence Directive, we focused on companies facing greater human rights risks because of their sector, geography or operational exposure.

We also regularly assess issuers' adherence to the UN Guiding Principles on Business and Human rights and the UN Global Compact when conducting green, social and impact bond evaluations as part of our investment process. We seek to share our views on public human rights commitments, enhancing transparency, strengthening risk-identification processes, promoting effective grievance mechanisms, and integrating human rights across issuers' value chains.

Most of the issuers we had contact with last year adhere to the UN Guiding Principles, have a human rights due diligence process in place, and support the 10 principles of the UN Global Compact. Just under half have had identified their salient human rights issues, however. Most had assigned responsibility for human rights oversight at the board level.

In general, the issuers we engaged with had diverse approaches to human rights actions. While some have dedicated teams and centralized policies, others emphasize decentralized assessments tailored to local market needs. Supply-chain management strategies also differ, with some companies focusing on high-risk suppliers across all tiers, conducting frequent audits to address violations, while others focus on specific supplier categories, such as Tier 1 suppliers.⁷²

Grievance mechanisms have been implemented by all issuers we engaged with; some companies offer multilingual options and tailored solutions based on region-specific considerations. Training efforts range from high-level codes of conduct to more focused operational training in roles related to elevated human rights risks. Stakeholder-engagement strategies also vary between long-term collaborations with nongovernmental organizations and trade unions to localized, community-focused programs.



Most Issuers We Engaged With Adhere to UN Principles on Human Rights

Source: Goldman Sachs Asset Management. As of December 31, 2024.

72 Tier 1 suppliers are those with which a company contracts directly to supply goods or services.

In Focus: Sovereign Engagement on Biodiversity and Just Transition

Sovereign issuers have been a key part of the green, social and sustainability bond market for years. This gives ample opportunity for our Sustainable and Impact Fixed Income team to engage with sovereigns about their priorities and how these contribute to the formation of a green, social or sustainability bond framework as well as impact reporting for their labeled bond programs.

Biodiversity

In our view, one of the most important agenda items at the 2024 UN Biodiversity Conference (COP16) was the mainstreaming of biodiversity into national policies and strategies. This mechanism is known as the National Biodiversity Strategy and Action Plan (NBSAP), which serves as a blueprint for how individual countries plan to manage and protect of biodiversity and nature, as well as ensuring they meet the targets outlined in the Kunming-Montreal Global Biodiversity Framework. Acknowledging this, our team engaged with 15 sovereign green bond issuers last year across regions. We sought to understand whether biodiversity conservation was embedded in national development strategies and relevant sectors policies. We also discussed the role an issuer's sustainable bond program plays in supporting the national biodiversity targets and goals set out in its NBSAPs and trends on biodiversity expenditure.

We found that European countries had made greater progress in integrating biodiversity into their national policies and/ or regulations, due in part to EU legislation such as the Habitats Directive and Birds Directive.⁷³ Many non-EU countries placed a priority on key natural resource sectors such as forestry, fisheries and agriculture, though few had provided guidelines or practical approaches to promote coherence with existing environmental policies and plans. We think it can help to involve businesses in the implementation of NBSAPs by setting clear expectations of business actions for each target set in the NBSAP, providing road maps and clarifying their responsibilities along with measurable targets for performance monitoring.

The major biodiversity projects in sovereign labeled bond frameworks are typically related to terrestrial and aquatic biodiversity conservation. While most sovereign issuers include biodiversity in their eligible green projects, allocation remains low. Most of the sovereign issuers we engaged with also said they did not expect to increase allocation to biodiversity projects within their labeled bond programs in the future. For many countries, little information is available on their biodiversity investment needs and long-term funding plans. Filling this gap would help investors identify investment opportunities and demonstrate strong and credible commitment towards nature goals, in our view.

73 The EU Habitats Directive came into force in 1992, 13 years after the Birds Directive.



Engagement With Sovereign Labeled Bond Issuers Showed Europe Leading on Biodiversity Integration

Source: Goldman Sachs Asset Management. As of December 31, 2024.

Just Transition

Corporations have begun integrating just transition principles into their strategies, but these efforts often lack comprehensive plans and inclusive processes. Sovereign involvement is essential to establish a robust policy framework, economic diversification strategies, and social protection systems that can guide and support corporate actions.

With sovereign issuers, we focus on five aspects of just transition: public policy, stakeholder engagement, economic diversification, workforce development, and social protection. We look for robust legislative measures that can help ensure long-term commitment to and effective implementation of the just transition, demonstrating a government's dedication to integrating just transition principles into national climate action plans.

Stakeholder engagement is crucial. We expect issuers to pursue inclusive consultation processes that involve workers, businesses and marginalized communities, ensuring that all voices are heard and considered in the planning and implementation phases of transition planning. We value detailed economic diversification plans and the development of emerging industries because they are crucial for creating new employment opportunities and driving economic growth. Finally, clear targets for green job creation, and strong social protection measures that support affected stakeholder groups, are considered essential, because they can facilitate a smooth transition for affected stakeholder groups and help ensure that no one is left behind.

In our engagement with sovereign issuers, we found Western Europe leading on integrating just transition strategies into Nationally Determined Contributions (NDCs). Asia and Eastern Europe, by contrast, showed limited integration, with most countries not yet reflecting just transition considerations in their NDCs.

Some sovereign issuers have enacted climate laws that explicitly include just transition, focusing on reducing emissions while providing clear strategies to protect jobs, retrain workers, and ensure equitable cost-sharing during the transition. In certain cases, governments have created regional or national just transition commissions or committees to engage stakeholders including labor unions, businesses, NGOs, and local communities. These mechanisms aim to ensure collaborative planning and implementation of transition strategies, with some regions prioritizing community empowerment. Strategies for economic diversification include the repurposing of high-carbon industries such as coal mining into renewable energy hubs or green finance centers. Other actions focus on promoting sustainable agriculture, circular models, and low-carbon infrastructure projects to create new employment opportunities.

Most of the sovereign issuers we engaged with have launched initiatives to reskill and upskill workers for emerging green industries,⁷⁴ particularly in fields like renewable energy and retrofitting. One issuer said: "We focus on the proportions of the workforce between regions and use this as a starting point to consider which may face the biggest impacts and require the greatest support in helping the country meet its climate ambition." Partnerships with training providers, educational institutions, and businesses play a central role in aligning workforce skills with future industry needs.

Social protection measures are also a key part of a just transition. These include financial support for vulnerable workers, income subsidies for those transitioning away from high-carbon industries, and subsidies for households affected by carbon taxes. According to one sovereign issuer, the net zero journey "brings with it a range of important decisions about how we transition, the pace of change, the technologies involved, how we protect heritage and culture, and how we manage development. Decisions made now, such as policies, and regulations put in place to support the transition, will influence how vulnerable and indigenous peoples participate in, and benefit from, the transition. This is a critical moment that can determine these peoples' effective economic participation and leadership. We prioritize investment in the right technology, in the right place, so we can also ensure that these peoples have access to the kind of reliable and affordable electricity that most other citizens already enjoy."

For stakeholder engagement, some sovereign issuers emphasize bottom-up approaches, hosting public consultations to tailor solutions for local needs. Some countries focus on specific local efforts including the inclusion of communities directly in the planning and implementation of transition projects, particularly in historically high-carbon regions. Finally, some governments have mobilized international funding partnerships to accelerate their transition efforts, such as large-scale renewable energy projects or decarbonization initiatives. These partnerships aim to provide financial and technical resources to bridge the gap between current and future energy systems.

74 The UN defines green industry as "economies striving for a more sustainable pathway of growth by undertaking green public investments and implementing public policy initiatives that encourage environmentally responsible private investments." See United Nations Industrial Development Organization website. As of May 18, 2025.



Engagement With Sovereign Labelled Bond Issuers Shows Positive Results for Western Europe

Source: Goldman Sachs Asset Management. As of December 31, 2024.

Note: The response "partially" indicates that while some measures or efforts are in place to address the key performance indicator, they are not fully implemented, comprehensive or consistent. This could mean that a plan or framework exists but lacks specific actions, mechanisms, or full coverage to fully meet the requirements.

Risk and Reward Profile

The summary risk indicator is a guide to the level of risk of this product compared to other products. It shows how likely it is that the product will lose money because of movements in the markets or because we are not able to pay you. The real risk may be significantly different if the Product is not held to maturity. The risk indicator assumes you keep the Product for 5 years.

We have classified the seven funds covered in this report – Goldman Sachs Green Bond, Goldman Sachs Green Bond Short Duration, Goldman Sachs Corporate Green Bond, Goldman Sachs Sovereign Green Bond, Goldman Sachs USD Green Bond, Goldman Sachs Social Bond and Goldman Sachs Global Impact Corporate Bond by risk class. This rates the potential losses from future performance at a medium-low level, and poor market conditions are unlikely to impact the fund's capacity to pay you.

Be aware of currency risk when the currency of the fund is different than the official currency of the Member State where the Fund is marketed to you. You will receive payments in a different currency than the official currency of the Member State where the Fund is marketed to you, so the final return you will get depends on the exchange rate between the two currencies. The risk is not considered in the indicator shown above.

Investments in fixed income securities are subject to the risks associated with debt securities generally, including credit, liquidity, interest rate, prepayment and extension risk. Bond prices fluctuate inversely to changes in interest rates. Therefore, a general rise in interest rates can result in the decline in the bond's price. The value of securities with variable and floating interest rates are generally less sensitive to interest rate changes than securities with fixed interest rates. Variable and floating rate securities may decline in value if interest rates do not move as expected.

Conversely, variable and floating rate securities will not generally rise in value if market interest rates decline. Credit risk is the risk that an issuer will default on payments of interest and principal. Credit risk is higher when investing in high yield bonds, also known as junk bonds. Prepayment risk is the risk that the issuer of a security may pay off principal more quickly than originally anticipated. Extension risk is the risk that the issuer of a security may pay off principal more slowly than originally anticipated. All fixed income investments may be worth less than their original cost upon redemption or maturity.

Mutual funds are subject to various risks, as described fully in each Fund's prospectus. There can be no assurance that the Funds will achieve their investment objectives. The Funds may be subject to style risk, which is the risk that the particular investing style of the Fund (i.e., growth or value) may be out of favor in the marketplace for various periods of time.

Any reference to a specific company or security does not constitute a recommendation to buy, sell, hold or directly invest in the company or its securities. It should not be assumed that investment decisions made in the future will be profitable or will equal the performance of the securities discussed in this document.

The relevant risks of all seven funds are the following:

- **Market risk:** This risk is associated with financial instruments that are affected by the economic development of individual companies, by the overall situation of the global economy and by the economic and political conditions prevailing in each relevant country.
- **Credit risk:** Possible failure of the issuers of underlying investments may impact the value of your investments.
- Liquidity risk: Underlying investment may be difficult to sell, which would impact your ability to redeem your investment.
- **Sustainability risk:** Occurrence of an environmental, social or governance event or condition, that could cause an actual or a potential material negative impact on the value of investments.

An additional relevant risk of the **Goldman Sachs Corporate Green Bond fund** is the following:

• Hedging share classes, a method to try to manage specific interest rate risk, may lead to additional credit risk and to residual market risk depending on the effectiveness of the hedging performed.

An additional relevant risk of the Goldman Sachs Social Bond fund is the following:

• Concentration risk: Investments concentrated in a specific region or theme could be highly impacted by a single event.

Complete information on the risks of investing in each Fund are set out in the Fund's prospectus.

The prospectus, the Key Information Document (KID) or UK Key Investor Information Document (KID) (as applicable), information on sustainability- related aspects of the fund (such as the SFDR disclosure requirement), and other legally required documents relating to the fund (containing information about the fund, the costs and the risks involved) are available on am.gs.com/documents in the relevant languages of the countries where the fund is registered or notified for marketing purposes. Goldman Sachs Asset Management B.V. may decide to terminate the arrangements made for the marketing of the fund in accordance with article 93a UCITS Directive and article 32a AIFM Directive as implemented in Dutch law in article 2:121ca and 2:124.0a Wft. Information about investor rights and collective redress mechanisms are available on am.gs.com/policies-and-governance.

Investment sustains risk. The decision to invest in a fund should take into account all the characteristics, objectives, and associated risks of a fund as described in the prospectus. The investment promoted concerns the acquisition of units or shares in a fund, and not in an underlying asset in which the fund invests. Please note that the value of any investment may rise or fall and that past performance is not indicative of future results and should in no event be deemed as such. A return on investment may increase or decrease as a result of currency fluctuation.

Goldman Sachs Green Bond

Fund Characteristics	
Investment Objective	Measured over a period of 5 years we aim to beat the performance of the benchmark Bloomberg MSCI Euro Green Bond Index. The benchmark is a broad representation of our investment universe. The fund can also include bonds that are not part of the benchmark universe. We actively manage the fund with a focus on bond selection. We combine our analysis on specific issuers of bonds with a broader ESG and market analysis to construct the optimal portfolio. We aim to exploit differences in valuations of issuers of bonds within sectors and differences in valuations between sectors and different quality segments (ratings). Therefore, the fund positioning can materially deviate from the benchmark. The fund does not aim to provide you with a dividend. It will reinvest all earnings.
Investment Policy	To determine our eligible universe, we check if the selected bonds adhere to the Green Bond Principles as formulated by the International Capital Market Association. Furthermore, issuers are screened using exclusionary screening. For risk management purposes, sector and country deviation limits are maintained relative to the benchmark.
Type of Assets in Which Fund May Invest	The fund primarily invests in a portfolio of global corporate green bonds of high quality (with a rating of AAA to BBB-) mainly denominated in Euro. Green bonds are bond instruments where the proceeds will be applied to finance or re-finance new and/or existing projects that are beneficial to the environment. The fund may invest in bonds with a higher risk (with a quality rating lower than BBB-) up to 10% of its net assets.
Actively or Not Actively Managed Against Benchmark + Degree of Freedom from Benchmark	We actively manage this fund with a focus on bond selection.
Leverage	NA
SFDR Disclosure (optional)	Article 9
Risks	

The risk of this fund is set at 3 (on a scale of 1 - lower risk to 7 - higher risk). Historical data, such as is used for calculating this indicator, may not be a reliable indication of the future risk profile of this fund. There is no guarantee that the risk indicator will remain unchanged, it may shift over time. The lowest category of risk does not mean that the investment is risk free. This fund is in category 3 because of the behaviour of the product during the measuring period. The overall market risk, taking into account past performances and future potential evolution of the markets, associated with bonds used to reach the investment objective is considered medium. These financial instruments are impacted by various factors. These include, but are not limited to, the development of the financial market, the economic development of issuers of these financial instruments who are themselves affected by the general world economic situation and the economic and political conditions in each country. Expected credit risk, the risk of failure of the issuers of underlying investments is medium. The Sub-Fund's liquidity risk is set to medium. Liquidity risks arise when a specific underlying investment is difficult to sell. Moreover, currency fluctuation may impact highly the Sub-Fund's performance. No guarantee is provided as to the recovery of the initial investment.

C&C / Fees overview

Share Classes	ISIN	Currency	Management Fee (%)	Fixed Service Fee (%)	Ongoing Charges Including Management Fee (%)	Minimum Investment
I Capitalisation	LU1365052627	EUR	0.20	0.12	0.33	€250,000
I Distribution	LU1365053195	EUR	0.20	0.12	0.33	€250,000
P Distribution	LU1619163584	EUR	0.40	0.15	0.60	-

LU1465052890	EUR	0.20	0.15	0.40	-
LU1586216068	EUR	0.40	0.15	0.60	-
LU1840630427	SEK	0.40	0.15	0.62	-
LU1738491338	EUR	0.75	0.15	0.95	-
LU1861144340	USD	0.20	0.12	0.35	€250,000
LU2213813608	GBP	0.20	0.12	0.35	€250,000
	LU1586216068 LU1840630427 LU1738491338 LU1861144340	LU1586216068 EUR LU1840630427 SEK LU1738491338 EUR LU1861144340 USD	LU1586216068 EUR 0.40 LU1840630427 SEK 0.40 LU1738491338 EUR 0.75 LU1861144340 USD 0.20	LU1586216068 EUR 0.40 0.15 LU1840630427 SEK 0.40 0.15 LU1738491338 EUR 0.75 0.15 LU1861144340 USD 0.20 0.12	LU1586216068 EUR 0.40 0.15 0.60 LU1840630427 SEK 0.40 0.15 0.62 LU1738491338 EUR 0.75 0.15 0.95 LU1861144340 USD 0.20 0.12 0.35

Fee data as of July 31, 2024. Risk level as of April 30, 2025. * Not available yet.

Fees are generally billed and payable at the end of each quarter and are based on average month-end market values during the quarter. Additional information is provided in our Form ADV Part 2. Details of the fees payable by you in connection with the fund are set out in the fund's offering documents/ MiFID II costs and charges document. The fees are the fees the fund charges to investors to cover the costs of running the Fund, which will impact on the overall return which an investor receives. Additional costs, including transaction fees, will also be incurred. These costs are paid out by the Fund, which will impact on the overall return of the Fund. Fund charges will be incurred in multiple currencies, meaning that payments may increase or decrease as a result of currency exchange fluctuations. All charges will be paid out by the Fund, which will impact on the overall return of the subject to tax which depends on the personal tax situation of each investor, which may change over time. The cost may increase or decrease as a result of currency and exchange rate fluctuations.

Goldman Sachs Social Bond

Fund Characteristics	
Investment Objective	Measured over a period of 5 years we aim to beat the performance of the benchmark iBoxx EUR Investment Grade Social Bonds (10% Issuer Cap). The benchmark is a broad representation of our investment universe. The fund can also include bonds that are not part of the benchmark universe. We actively manage the fund with a focus on bond selection. We combine our analysis on specific issuers of bonds with a broader ESG and market analysis to construct the optimal portfolio. We aim to exploit differences in valuations of issuers of bonds within sectors and differences in valuations between sectors and different quality segments (ratings). Therefore, the fund positioning can materially deviate from the benchmark.
Investment Policy	To determine our eligible universe, we check if the selected bonds adhere to the Social Bond Principles as formulated by the International Capital Market Association. Furthermore, issuers are screened using exclusionary screening. For risk management purposes, sector and country deviation limits are maintained relative to the benchmark.
Type of Assets in Which Fund May Invest	The fund mainly invests in a portfolio of Social bonds and money market instruments of high quality (with a rating of AAA to BBB-) mainly denominated in Euro. Social bonds are any type of bond instruments where the proceeds will be applied to finance or re-finance in part or in full new and/or existing projects that provide clear social benefits especially but not exclusively for a target population(s). The fund may also invest in sustainability bonds. The fund may invest in bonds with a higher risk (with a quality rating lower than BBB-) up to 10% of its net assets.
Actively or Not Actively Managed Against Benchmark + Degree of Freedom from Benchmark	We actively manage this fund with a focus on bond selection.
Leverage	NA
SFDR Disclosure (optional)	Article 9
Risks	

The risk of this fund is set at 2 (on a scale of 1 - lower risk to 7 - higher risk). Historical data, such as is used for calculating this indicator, may not be a reliable indication of the future risk profile of this fund. There is no guarantee that the risk indicator will remain unchanged, it may shift over time. The lowest category of risk does not mean that the investment is risk free. This fund is in category 2 because of the behaviour of the product during the measuring period. The overall market risk associated with the bonds or other financial instruments used to reach the investment objectives is considered medium. These financial instruments are impacted by various factors. These include, but are not limited to, the development of the financial market, the economic development of issuers of these financial instruments who are themselves affected by the general world economic situation and the economic and political conditions in each country. Expected credit risk, the risk of failure of the issuers of underlying investments is medium. The fund's liquidity risk is set to medium. Liquidity risks arise when a specific underlying investment is difficult to sell. No guarantee is provided as to the recovery of the initial investment. Based on the assessment of the sustainability risks, the sustainability risks on the performance of the fund. This is based on the level and result of integration of environmental, social and governance factors in the investment process of the fund. The sustainability risk profile of the fund is medium.

C&C / Fees overview

Share Classes	ISIN	Currency	Management Fee (%)	Fixed Service Fee (%)	Ongoing Charges Including Management Fee (%)	Minimum Investment
I Capitalisation	LU2489470984	EUR	0.20	0.12	0.33	€250,000
N Capitalisation*	LU24896309001	EUR	0.20	0.15	0.55	-
P Capitalisation	LU2489471016	EUR	0.40	0.15	0.60	-
R Capitalisation	LU2489471107	EUR	0.20	0.15	0.40	-
X Capitalisation	LU2489471289	EUR	0.75	0.15	0.95	-
I Capitalisation (Hedged I)*	LU2545728532	CHF	0.20	0.12	0.35	€250,000
I Capitalisation (Hedged I)	LU2496309183	GBP	0.20	0.12	0.35	€250,000

Fee data as of July 31, 2024. Risk level as of April 30, 2025. * Not available yet.

Fees are generally billed and payable at the end of each quarter and are based on average month-end market values during the quarter. Additional information is provided in our Form ADV Part 2. Details of the fees payable by you in connection with the fund are set out in the fund's offering documents/ MiFID II costs and charges document. The fees are the fees the fund charges to investors to cover the costs of running the Fund, which will impact on the overall return which an investor receives. Additional costs, including transaction fees, will also be incurred. These costs are paid out by the Fund, which will impact on the overall return of the Fund. Fund charges will be incurred in multiple currencies, meaning that payments may increase or decrease as a result of currency exchange fluctuations. All charges will be paid out by the Fund, which will impact on the overall return of the subject to tax which depends on the personal tax situation of each investor, which may change over time. The cost may increase or decrease as a result of currency and exchange rate fluctuations.

Goldman Sachs Global Impact Corporate Bond

Fund Characteristics	
Investment Objective	Measured over a period of 5 years the fund aims to beat the performance of the benchmark iBoxx Global Green, Social & Sustainable Bonds EUR Hedged Total Return Index (EUR) – Corporates. The benchmark is a broad representation of the fund's investment universe. The fund may also include investments into bonds that are not part of the benchmark universe. The fund is actively managed with a focus on bond selection where analysis of specific issuers of bonds is combined with a broader market analysis to construct the optimal portfolio, with deviation limits maintained relative to the benchmark. The aim is to exploit differences in valuations of issuers of bonds between sectors and differences in valuations between sectors and different quality segments (ratings). Therefore, the fund's investments can materially deviate from the benchmark. You can sell your participation in this fund on each (working) day on which the value of the units is calculated, which for this fund occurs daily. The fund does not aim to provide you with a dividend. It will reinvest all earnings.
Investment Policy	To determine our eligible universe, we check if the selected bonds adhere to the Green Bond Principles as formulated by the International Capital Market Association. Furthermore, issuers are screened using exclusionary screening. For risk management purposes, sector and country deviation limits are maintained relative to the benchmark.
Type of Assets in Which Fund May Invest	The fund invests at least 85% of its net assets in a portfolio of green bonds and money market instruments of high quality (with a rating of AAA to BBB-) mainly denominated in Euro. Green bonds are bond instruments where the proceeds will be applied to finance or re-finance in part or in full new and/or existing projects that are beneficial to the environment. The fund may invest in bonds with a higher risk (with a quality rating lower than BBB-) up to 10% of its net assets.

Actively or Not Actively Managed Against Benchmark + Degree of Freedom from Benchmark	We actively manage this fund with a focus on bond selection.
Leverage	NA
SFDR Disclosure (optional)	Article 9
Picks	

Risks

The risk of this fund is set at 2 (on a scale of 1 - lower risk to 7 - higher risk). Historical data, such as is used for calculating this indicator, may not be a reliable indication of the future risk profile of this fund. There is no guarantee that the risk indicator will remain unchanged, it may shift over time. The lowest category of risk does not mean that the investment is risk free. This fund is in category 2 because of the behaviour of the product during the measuring period. The overall market risk,taking into account past performances and future potential evolution of the markets, associated with bonds used to reach the investment objective is considered medium. These financial instruments are impacted by various factors. These include, but are not limited to, the development of the financial market, the economic development of issuers of these financial instruments who are themselves affected by the general world economic situation and the economic and political conditions in each country. Expected credit risk, the risk of failure of the issuers of underlying investments is medium. The Sub-Fund's liquidity risk is set to medium. Liquidity risks arise when a specific underlying investment is difficult to sell. Moreover, currency fluctuation may impact highly the Sub-Fund's performance. No guarantee is provided as to the recovery of the initial investment.

C&C / Fees overview

ISIN	Currency	Management Fee (%)	Fixed Service Fee (%)	Ongoing Charges Including Management Fee (%)	Minimum Investment
LU2580621675	EUR	0.20	0.12	0.33	€250,000
LU2349459391	CHF	0.20	0.12	0.35	€250,000
LU2102358251	EUR	0.20	0.12	0.33	€250,000
LU2580622053	EUR	0.47	0.15	0.67	_
LU2580622137	EUR	0.27	0.15	0.47	_
LU2580622640	EUR	-	0.12	0.13	_
	LU2580621675 LU2349459391 LU2102358251 LU2580622053 LU2580622137	LU2580621675 EUR LU2349459391 CHF LU2102358251 EUR LU2580622053 EUR LU2580622137 EUR	ISIN Currency Fee (%) LU2580621675 EUR 0.20 LU2349459391 CHF 0.20 LU2102358251 EUR 0.20 LU2580622053 EUR 0.47 LU2580622137 EUR 0.27	ISIN Currency Fee (%) Fee (%) LU2580621675 EUR 0.20 0.12 LU2349459391 CHF 0.20 0.12 LU2102358251 EUR 0.20 0.12 LU2580622053 EUR 0.47 0.15 LU2580622137 EUR 0.27 0.15	ISIN Currency Management Fee (%) Fixed Service Fee (%) Including Management Fee (%) LU2580621675 EUR 0.20 0.12 0.33 LU2349459391 CHF 0.20 0.12 0.35 LU2102358251 EUR 0.20 0.12 0.33 LU2580622053 EUR 0.47 0.15 0.67 LU2580622137 EUR 0.27 0.15 0.47

Fee data as of July 31, 2024. Risk level as of April 30, 2025.

Fees are generally billed and payable at the end of each quarter and are based on average month-end market values during the quarter. Additional information is provided in our Form ADV Part 2. Details of the fees payable by you in connection with the fund are set out in the fund's offering documents/ MiFID II costs and charges document. The fees are the fees the fund charges to investors to cover the costs of running the Fund, which will impact on the overall return which an investor receives. Additional costs, including transaction fees, will also be incurred. These costs are paid out by the Fund, which will impact on the overall return of the Fund. Fund charges will be incurred in multiple currencies, meaning that payments may increase or decrease as a result of currency exchange fluctuations. All charges will be paid out by the Fund, which will impact on the overall return of the subject to tax which depends on the personal tax situation of each investor, which may change over time. The cost may increase or decrease as a result of currency and exchange rate fluctuations.

Goldman Sachs Corporate Green Bond

Fund Characteristics	
Investment Objective	Measured over a period of 5 years we aim to beat the performance of the Bloomberg Barclays Euro Green Corporate Bond 5% Issuer Capped benchmark. The benchmark is a broad representation of our investment universe. The fund can also include bonds that are not part of the benchmark universe. In order to achieve that goal, we take active management decisions that will result in over and underweight positions as compared to the Benchmark as well as in investments into securities that are not part of the Benchmark. For portfolio construction and risk management, we use measures widely used in the industry and relevant for the asset class that allow us to assess and manage the Fund's risk compared to the Benchmark. We combine our analysis on specific issuers of bonds with a broader ESG and market analysis to construct the optimal portfolio. We aim to exploit differences in valuations of issuers of bonds within sectors and differences in valuations between sectors and different quality segments (ratings). Therefore the fund positioning can materially deviate from the benchmark. The fund does not aim to provide you with a dividend. It will reinvest all earnings.
Investment Policy	To determine our eligible universe, we check if the selected bonds adhere to the Green Bond Principles as formulated by the International Capital Market Association. Furthermore issuers with severe environmental, social and governance (ESG) controversies or poor ESG ratings and policies are excluded. For risk management purposes, sector and country deviation limits are maintained relative to the benchmark.

Type of Assets in Which Fund May Invest	The fund invests at least 85% of its net assets in a portfolio of global corporate green bonds of high quality (with a rating of AAA to BBB-) mainly denominated in Euro. Green bonds are bond instruments where the proceeds will be applied to finance or re-finance new and/or existing projects that are beneficial to the environment. The fund may invest in bonds with a higher risk (with a quality rating lower than BBB-) up to 10% of its net assets.
Actively or Not Actively Managed Against Benchmark + Degree of Freedom from Benchmark	We actively manage this fund with a focus on bond selection.
Leverage	NA
SFDR Disclosure (optional)	Article 9
Risks	

The risk of this fund is set at 2 (on a scale of 1 - lower risk to 7 - higher risk), which is a low risk class. This rates the potential losses from future performance at a low level, and poor market conditions are very unlikely to impact the Fund's capacity to pay you. The actual risk can vary significantly if you cash in at an early stage and you may get back less. You may not be able to cash in early. You may have to pay significant extra costs to cash in early. Be aware of currency risk when the currency of the Fund is different than the official currency of the Member State where the Fund is marketed to you. You will receive payments in a different currency than the official currency of the Member State where the Fund is marketed to you, so the final return you will get depends on the exchange rate between the two currencies. The risk is not considered in the indicator shown above.

C&C / Fees overview

Share Classes	ISIN	Currency	Management Fee (%)	Fixed Service Fee (%)	Ongoing Charges Including Management Fee (%)	Minimum Investment
I Capitalisation	LU2102358178	EUR	0.27	0.12	0.40	€250,000
I Capitalisation	LU2299106711	GBP	0.27	0.12	0.40	€250,000
P Capitalisation	LU2102358418	EUR	0.47	0.15	0.67	-
R Capitalisation	LU2102358509	EUR	0.27	0.15	0.47	-
Z Capitalisation	LU2102358764	EUR	-	0.12	0.13	-

Fee data as of July 31, 2024. Risk level as of April 30, 2025.

Fees are generally billed and payable at the end of each quarter and are based on average month-end market values during the quarter. Additional information is provided in our Form ADV Part 2. Details of the fees payable by you in connection with the fund are set out in the fund's offering documents/ MiFID II costs and charges document. The fees are the fees the fund charges to investors to cover the costs of running the Fund, which will impact on the overall return which an investor receives. Additional costs, including transaction fees, will also be incurred. These costs are paid out by the Fund, which will impact on the overall return of the Fund. Fund charges will be incurred in multiple currencies, meaning that payments may increase or decrease as a result of currency exchange fluctuations. All charges will be paid out by the Fund, which will impact on the overall return of the subject to tax which depends on the personal tax situation of each investor, which may change over time. The cost may increase or decrease as a result of currency and exchange rate fluctuations.

Goldman Sachs Green Bond Short Duration

Fund Characteristics	
Investment Objective	The fund does not intend to measure its performance against that index. The benchmark is a broad representation of our investment universe. The fund can also include bonds that are not part of the benchmark universe. You can sell your participation in this fund on each (working) day on which the value of the units is calculated, which for this fund occurs daily. The fund does not aim to provide you with a dividend. It will reinvest all earnings. The return of the Portfolio depends on the performance of the Portfolio, which is directly related to the performance of its investments. The risk and reward profile of the Portfolio described in this key information document assumes that you hold your investments in the Portfolio for at least the Recommended Holding Period as set out below under the heading "How long should I hold it and can I take money early out". Please see the section "How long should I hold it and can I take my money out early?" below for additional details (including restrictions and/or penalties) on the ability to redeem your investment in the Fund.
Investment Policy	To determine our eligible universe, we check if the selected bonds adhere to the Green Bond Principles as formulated by the International Capital Market Association. Furthermore, issuers are screened using exclusionary screening. For risk management purposes, sector and country deviation limits are maintained relative to the benchmark.

Type of Assets in Which Fund May Invest	The fund primarily invests in a portfolio of global corporate green bonds of high quality (with a rating of AAA to BBB-) mainly denominated in Euro. Green bonds are bond instruments where the proceeds will be applied to finance or re-finance new and/or existing projects that are beneficial to the environment. The fund may invest in bonds with a higher risk (with a quality rating lower than BBB-) up to 10% of its net assets.
Actively or Not Actively Managed Against Benchmark + Degree of Freedom from Benchmark	We actively manage this fund with a focus on bond selection.
Leverage	NA
SFDR Disclosure (optional)	Article 9
Risks	

The risk of this fund is set at 2 (on a scale of 1 - lower risk to 7 - higher risk). Historical data, such as is used for calculating this indicator, may not be a reliable indication of the future risk profile of this fund. There is no guarantee that the risk indicator will remain unchanged, it may shift over time. The lowest category of risk does not mean that the investment is risk free. This fund is in category 2 because of the behaviour of the product during the measuring period. The overall market risk,taking into account past performances and future potential evolution of the markets, associated with bonds used to reach the investment objective is considered medium. These financial instruments are impacted by various factors. These include, but are not limited to, the development of the financial market, the economic development of issuers of these financial instruments who are themselves affected by the general world economic situation and the economic and political conditions in each country. Expected credit risk, the risk of failure of the issuers of underlying investments is medium. The Sub-Fund's liquidity risk is set to medium. Liquidity risks arise when a specific underlying investment is difficult to sell. Moreover, currency fluctuation may impact highly the Sub-Fund's performance. No guarantee is provided as to the recovery of the initial investment.

C&C / Fees overview

Share Classes	ISIN	Currency	Management Fee (%)	Fixed Service Fee (%)	Ongoing Charges Including Management Fee (%)	Minimum Investment
I Capitalisation	LU1922482994	EUR	0.20	0.12	0.33	€250,000
I Capitalisation (Hedged I)	LU2400966334	CHF	0.20	0.12	0.35	€250,000
I Capitalisation (Hedged I)	LU1922483612	GBP	0.20	0.12	0.35	€250,000
I Capitalisation (Hedged I)	LU1922483968	USD	0.20	0.12	0.35	€250,000
I Distribution	LU1932640938	EUR	0.20	0.12	0.33	€250,000
P Capitalisation	LU1922483299	EUR	0.40	0.15	0.60	-
R Capitalisation	LU1922483455	EUR	0.20	0.15	0.40	-
R Capitalisation (Hedged I)	LU2508678757	USD	0.20	0.15	0.40	-
X Capitalisation	LU1983361905	EUR	0.75	0.15	0.95	-

Fee data as of July 31, 2024. Risk level as of April 30, 2025.

Fees are generally billed and payable at the end of each quarter and are based on average month-end market values during the quarter. Additional information is provided in our Form ADV Part 2. Details of the fees payable by you in connection with the fund are set out in the fund's offering documents/ MiFID II costs and charges document. The fees are the fees the fund charges to investors to cover the costs of running the Fund, which will impact on the overall return which an investor receives. Additional costs, including transaction fees, will also be incurred. These costs are paid out by the Fund, which will impact on the overall return of the Fund. Fund charges will be incurred in multiple currencies, meaning that payments may increase or decrease as a result of currency exchange fluctuations. All charges will be paid out by the Fund, which will impact on the overall return of the subject to tax which depends on the personal tax situation of each investor, which may change over time. The cost may increase or decrease as a result of currency and exchange rate fluctuations.

Goldman Sachs Sovereign Green Bond

Fund Characteristics	
Investment Objective	The fund does not intend to measure its performance against that index. The benchmark is a broad representation of our investment universe. The fund can also include bonds that are not part of the benchmark universe. You can sell your participation in this fund on each (working) day on which the value of the units is calculated, which for this fund occurs daily. The fund does not aim to provide you with a dividend. It will reinvest all earnings. The return of the Portfolio depends on the performance of the Portfolio, which is directly related to the performance of its investments. The risk and reward profile of the Portfolio described in this key information document assumes that you hold your investments in the Portfolio for at least the Recommended Holding Period as set out below under the heading "How long should I hold it and can I take money early out". Please see the section "How long should I hold it and can I take my money out early?" below for additional details (including restrictions and/or penalties) on the ability to redeem your investment in the Fund.
Investment Policy	To determine our eligible universe, we check if the selected bonds adhere to the Green Bond Principles as formulated by the International Capital Market Association. Furthermore, issuers are screened using exclusionary screening. For risk management purposes, sector and country deviation limits are maintained relative to the benchmark.
Type of Assets in Which Fund May Invest	The fund primarily invests in a portfolio of global corporate green bonds of high quality (with a rating of AAA to BBB-) mainly denominated in Euro. Green bonds are bond instruments where the proceeds will be applied to finance or re-finance new and/or existing projects that are beneficial to the environment. The fund may invest in bonds with a higher risk (with a quality rating lower than BBB-) up to 10% of its net assets.
Actively or Not Actively Managed Against Benchmark + Degree of Freedom from Benchmark	We actively manage this fund with a focus on bond selection.
Leverage	NA
SFDR Disclosure (optional)	Article 9

Risks

The risk of this fund is set at 3 (on a scale of 1 - lower risk to 7 - higher risk). Historical data, such as is used for calculating this indicator, may not be a reliable indication of the future risk profile of this fund. There is no guarantee that the risk indicator will remain unchanged, it may shift over time. The lowest category of risk does not mean that the investment is risk free. This fund is in category 3 because of the behaviour of the product during the measuring period. The overall market risk, taking into account past performances and future potential evolution of the markets, associated with bonds used to reach the investment objective is considered medium. These financial instruments are impacted by various factors. These include, but are not limited to, the development of the financial market, the economic development of issuers of these financial instruments who are themselves affected by the general world economic situation and the economic and political conditions in each country. Expected credit risk, the risk of failure of the issuers of underlying investments is medium. The Sub-Fund's liquidity risk is set to medium. Liquidity risks arise when a specific underlying investment is difficult to sell. Moreover, currency fluctuation may impact highly the Sub-Fund's performance. No guarantee is provided as to the recovery of the initial investment.

C&C / Fees overview

Share Classes	ISIN	Currency	Management Fee (%)	Fixed Service Fee (%)	Ongoing Charges Including Management Fee (%)	Minimum Investment
I Capitalisation	LU2280235313	EUR	0.20	0.12	0.33	€250,000
IDistribution	LU2280235230	EUR	0.20	0.12	0.33	€250,000
I Capitalisation (hedged i)	LU2400966417	GBP	0.20	0.12	0.35	€250,000
X Capitalisation	LU2102358681	EUR	0.75	0.15	0.95	-
P Capitalisation	LU2280235586	EUR	0.40	0.15	0.60	-

Fee data as of July 31, 2024. Risk level as of April 30, 2025.

Fees are generally billed and payable at the end of each quarter and are based on average month-end market values during the quarter. Additional information is provided in our Form ADV Part 2. Details of the fees payable by you in connection with the fund are set out in the fund's offering documents/ MiFID II costs and charges document. The fees are the fees the fund charges to investors to cover the costs of running the Fund, which will impact on the overall return which an investor receives. Additional costs, including transaction fees, will also be incurred. These costs are paid out by the Fund, which will impact on the overall return of the Fund. Fund charges will be incurred in multiple currencies, meaning that payments

may increase or decrease as a result of currency exchange fluctuations. All charges will be paid out by the Fund, which will impact on the overall return of the Fund. Any future returns will be subject to tax which depends on the personal tax situation of each investor, which may change over time. The cost may increase or decrease as a result of currency and exchange rate fluctuations.

Goldman Sachs USD Green Bond

Fund Characteristics	
Investment Objective	Measured over a period of 5 years we aim to beat the performance of the benchmark Bloomberg MSCI Global Green Bond Index USD. The benchmark is a broad representation of our investment universe. The fund can also include bonds that are not part of the benchmark universe. We actively manage the fund with a focus on bond selection. We combine our analysis on specific issuers of bonds with a broader ESG and market analysis to construct the optimal portfolio. We aim to exploit differences in valuations of issuers of bonds within sectors and differences in valuations between sectors and different quality segments (ratings). Therefore the fund positioning can materially deviate from the benchmark. The fund does not aim to provide you with a dividend. It will reinvest all earnings.
Investment Policy	To determine our eligible universe, we check if the selected bonds adhere to the Green Bond Principles as formulated by the International Capital Market Association. Furthermore issuers are screened using exclusionary screening. For risk management purposes, sector and country deviation limits are maintained relative to the benchmark.
Type of Assets in Which Fund May Invest	The fund invests at least 85% of its net assets in a portfolio of green bonds and money market instruments of high quality (with a rating of AAA to BBB-) mainly denominated in Euro. Green bonds are bond instruments where the proceeds will be applied to finance or re-finance in part or in full new and/or existing projects that are beneficial to the environment. The fund may invest in bonds with a higher risk (with a quality rating lower than BBB-) up to 10% of its net assets.
Actively or Not Actively Managed Against Benchmark + Degree of Freedom from Benchmark	We actively manage this fund with a focus on bond selection.
Leverage	NA
SFDR Disclosure (optional)	Article 9
Risks	

The risk of this fund is set at 2 (on a scale of 1 - lower risk to 7 - higher risk). Historical data, such as is used for calculating this indicator, may not be a reliable indication of the future risk profile of this fund. There is no guarantee that the risk indicator will remain unchanged, it may shift over time. The lowest category of risk does not mean that the investment is risk free. This fund is in category 2 because of the behaviour of the product during the measuring period. The overall market risk,taking into account past performances and future potential evolution of the markets, associated with bonds used to reach the investment objective is considered medium. These financial instruments are impacted by various factors. These include, but are not limited to, the development of the financial market, the economic development of issuers of these financial instruments who are themselves affected by the general world economic situation and the economic and political conditions in each country. Expected credit risk, the risk of failure of the issuers of underlying investments is medium. The Sub-Fund's liquidity risk is set to medium. Liquidity risks arise when a specific underlying investment is difficult to sell. Moreover, currency fluctuation may impact highly the Sub-Fund's performance. No guarantee is provided as to the recovery of the initial investment.

cae, rees over men						
Share Classes	ISIN	Currency	Management Fee (%)	Fixed Service Fee (%)	Ongoing Charges Including Management Fee (%)	Minimum Investment
I Capitalisation	LU2578936002	USD	0.20	0.12	0.33	€250,000
I Capitalisation (hedged i)	LU2578935889	EUR	0.20	0.12	0.35	€250,000
I Capitalisation (hedged i)	LU2578935616	CHF	0.20	0.12	0.35	€250,000
I Capitalisation (hedged i)	LU2578935962	GBP	0.20	0.12	0.35	€250,000
X Capitalisation	LU2578936770	USD	0.75	0.15	0.95	-
X Capitalisation (hedged i)	LU2578936697	EUR	0.75	0.15	0.97	-
P Capitalisation	LU2578936424	USD	0.40	0.15	0.60	-
P Capitalisation (hedged i)	LU2578936267	EUR	0.40	0.15	0.62	-
R Capitalisation	LU2578936341	USD	0.20	0.15	0.40	-
R Capitalisation (hedged i)	LU2578936184	EUR	0.20	0.15	0.42	-

Fee data as of July 31, 2024. Risk level as of April 30, 2025.

C&C / Fees overview

GOLDMAN SACHS GREEN, SOCIAL AND IMPACT BOND FUNDS

Fees are generally billed and payable at the end of each quarter and are based on average month-end market values during the quarter. Additional information is provided in our Form ADV Part 2. Details of the fees payable by you in connection with the fund are set out in the fund's offering documents/ MiFID II costs and charges document. The fees are the fees the fund charges to investors to cover the costs of running the Fund, which will impact on the overall return which an investor receives. Additional costs, including transaction fees, will also be incurred. These costs are paid out by the Fund, which will impact on the overall return of the Fund. Fund charges will be incurred in multiple currencies, meaning that payments may increase or decrease as a result of currency exchange fluctuations. All charges will be paid out by the Fund, which will impact on the overall return of the subject to tax which depends on the personal tax situation of each investor, which may change over time. The cost may increase or decrease as a result of currency and exchange rate fluctuations.

DISCLOSURES

Please note that for the purposes of the European Sustainable Finance Disclosure Regulation ("SFDR"), the products Article 9 products that have a sustainable investment objective. Please note that this material includes certain information on Goldman Sachs sustainability practices and track record, at an organizational and investment team level, which may not necessarily be reflected in the portfolio. Any ESG characteristics, views, assessments, claims or similar referenced herein (i) will be based on, and limited to, the consideration of specific ESG attributes or metrics related to a product, issuer or service and not their broader or full ESG profile, and unless stated otherwise, (ii) may be limited to a point of time assessment and may not consider the broader lifecycle of the product, issuer or service, and (iii) may not consider any potential negative ESG impacts arising from or related to the product, issuer or service. Please refer to the offering documents of any product(s) prior to investment, for details on how and the extent to which the product(s) takes ESG considerations into account on a binding or non-binding basis.

This material is provided at your request solely for your use.

This material is provided at your request for informational purposes only. It is not an offer or solicitation to buy or sell any securities.

In the United Kingdom, this material is a financial promotion and has been approved by Goldman Sachs Asset Management International, which is authorised by the Prudential Regulation Authority and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority and the Prudential Regulation Authority.

In the European Union, this material has been approved by Goldman Sachs Asset Management BV, which is regulated by the Central Bank of Ireland.

This marketing communication is disseminated by Goldman Sachs Asset Management B.V., including through its branches ("GSAM BV"). GSAM BV is authorised and regulated by the Dutch Authority for the Financial Markets (Autoriteit Financiële Markten, Vijzelgracht 50, 1017 HS Amsterdam, The Netherlands) as an alternative investment fund manager ("AIFM") as well as a manager of undertakings for collective investment in transferable securities ("UCITS"). Under its licence as an AIFM, the Manager is authorized to provide the investment services of (i) reception and transmission of orders in financial instruments; (ii) portfolio management; and (iii) investment advice. Under its licence as a manager of UCITS, the Manager is authorized to provide the investment services of (i) portfolio management; and (ii) investment advice.

Information about investor rights and collective redress mechanisms are available on am.gs.com/policies-and-governance. Capital is at risk. Any claims arising out of or in connection with the terms and conditions of this disclaimer are governed by Dutch law.

Although certain information has been obtained from sources believed to be reliable, we do not guarantee its accuracy, completeness or fairness. We have relied upon and assumed without independent verification, the accuracy and completeness of all information available from public sources.

Views and opinions expressed are for informational purposes only and do not constitute a recommendation by GSAM to buy, sell, or hold any security. Views and opinions are current as of the date of this presentation and may be subject to change, they should not be construed as investment advice.

Capital is at risk.

THIS MATERIAL DOES NOT CONSTITUTE AN OFFER OR SOLICITATION IN ANY JURISDICTION WHERE OR TO ANY PERSON TO WHOM IT WOULD BE UNAUTHORIZED OR UNLAWFUL TO DO SO.

This material is provided for informational purposes only and should

not be construed as investment advice or an offer or solicitation to buy or sell securities. This material is not intended to be used as a general guide to investing, or as a source of any specific investment recommendations, and makes no implied or express recommendations concerning the manner in which any client's account should or would be handled, as appropriate investment strategies depend upon the client's investment objectives.

Prospective investors should inform themselves as to any applicable legal requirements and taxation and exchange control regulations in the countries of their citizenship, residence or domicile which might be relevant.

Past performance does not guarantee future results, which may vary. The value of investments and the income derived from investments will fluctuate and can go down as well as up. A loss of principal may occur.

Emerging markets securities may be less liquid and more volatile and are subject to a number of additional risks, including but not limited to currency fluctuations and political instability. This material contains information that pertains to past performance or is the basis for previously made discretionary investment decisions. This information should not be construed as a current recommendation, research or investment advice. It should not be assumed that any investment decisions shown will prove to be profitable, or that any investment decisions made in the future will be profitable or will equal the performance of investments discussed herein. Any mention of an investment decision is intended only to illustrate our investment approach and/or strategy and is not indicative of the performance of our strategy as a whole. Any such illustration is not necessarily representative of other investment decisions.

Company names and logos, excluding those of Goldman Sachs and any of its affiliates, are trademarks[™] or registered[®] trademarks of their respective holders. Use by Goldman Sachs does not imply or suggest a sponsorship, endorsement or affiliation.

This information discusses general market activity, industry or sector trends, or other broad-based economic, market or political conditions and should not be construed as research or investment advice. This material has been prepared by Goldman Sachs Asset Management and is not financial research nor a product of Goldman Sachs Global Investment Research (GIR). It was not prepared in compliance with applicable provisions of law designed to promote the independence of financial analysis and is not subject to a prohibition on trading following the distribution of financial research. The views and opinions expressed may differ from those of Goldman Sachs Global Investment Research or other departments or divisions of Goldman Sachs and its affiliates. Investors are urged to consult with their financial advisors before buying or selling any securities. This information may not be current and Goldman Sachs Asset Management has no obligation to provide any updates or changes.

Fees are generally billed and payable at the end of each quarter and are based on average month-end market values during the quarter. Additional information is provided in our Form ADV Part 2.

Portfolio holdings and/or allocations shown above are as of the date indicated and may not be representative of future investments. The holdings and/or allocations shown may not represent all of the portfolio's investments. Future investments may or may not be profitable.

Environmental, Social and Governance ("ESG") strategies may take risks or eliminate exposures found in other strategies or broad market benchmarks that may cause performance to diverge from the performance of these other strategies or market benchmarks. ESG strategies will be subject to the risks associated with their underlying

investments' asset classes. Further, the demand within certain markets or sectors that an ESG strategy targets may not develop as forecasted or may develop more slowly than anticipated. Any ESG characteristics, views, assessments, claims or similar referenced herein (i) will be based on, and limited to, the consideration of specific ESG attributes or metrics related to a product, issuer or service and not their broader or full ESG profile, and unless stated otherwise, (ii) may be limited to a point of time assessment and may not consider the broader lifecycle of the product, issuer or service, and (iii) may not consider any potential negative ESG impacts arising from or related to the product, issuer or service.

Index Benchmarks

Indices are unmanaged. The figures for the index reflect the reinvestment of all income or dividends, as applicable, but do not reflect the deduction of any fees or expenses which would reduce returns. Investors cannot invest directly in indices.

The indices referenced herein have been selected because they are well known, easily recognized by investors, and reflect those indices that the Investment Manager believes, in part based on industry practice, provide a suitable benchmark against which to evaluate the investment or broader market described herein.

References to indices, benchmarks or other measures of relative market performance over a specified period of time are provided for your information only and do not imply that the portfolio will achieve similar results. The index composition may not reflect the manner in which a portfolio is constructed. While an adviser seeks to design a portfolio which reflects appropriate risk and return features, portfolio characteristics may deviate from those of the benchmark.

Documents providing further detailed information about the fund/s, including the articles of incorporation, prospectus, supplement and the Key Information Document (KID) or UK Key Investor Information Document (KID) (as applicable), annual/semi-annual report (as applicable), and a summary of your investor rights, are available free of charge in English language and as required, in your local language by navigating to your local language landing page via am.gs.com/ documents and also from the fund's paying and information agents. If GSAM B.V., the management company, decides to terminate its arrangement for marketing the fund/s in any EEA country where it is registered for sale, it will do so in accordance with the relevant UCITS rules. Information about investor rights and collective redress mechanisms are available on am.gs.com/policies-and-governance.

Offering Documents

This material is provided at your request for informational purposes only and does not constitute a solicitation in any jurisdiction in which such a solicitation is unlawful or to any person to whom it is unlawful. It only contains selected information with regards to the fund and does not constitute an offer to buy shares in the fund. Prior to an investment, prospective investors should carefully read the latest Key Information Document (KID) or UK Key Investor Information Document (KIID) (as applicable) as well as the offering documentation, including but not limited to the fund's prospectus which contains inter alia a comprehensive disclosure of applicable risks.

Distribution of Shares

Shares of the fund may not be registered for public distribution in a number of jurisdictions (including but not limited to any Latin American, African or Asian countries). Therefore, the shares of the fund must not be marketed or offered in or to residents of any such jurisdictions unless such marketing or offering is made in compliance with applicable exemptions for the private placement of collective investment schemes and other applicable jurisdictional rules and regulations.

Investment Advice and Potential Loss

Financial advisers generally suggest a diversified portfolio of investments. The funds described herein do not represent a diversified investment by itself. This material must not be construed as investment or tax advice. Prospective investors should consult their financial and tax adviser before investing in order to determine whether an investment would be suitable for them. An investor should only invest if he/she has the necessary financial resources to bear a complete loss of this investment.

Swing Pricing

Please note that the fund operates a swing pricing policy. Investors should be aware that from time to time this may result in the fund performing differently compared to the reference benchmark based solely on the effect of swing pricing rather than price developments of underlying instruments.

This marketing communication is published by Goldman Sachs Asset Management B.V., a UCITS/AIF management company domiciled in the Netherlands and is intended for MiFID professional investors only.

This marketing communication has been prepared solely for the purpose of information and does not constitute an offer, in particular a prospectus or any invitation to treat, buy or sell any security or to participate in any trading strategy or the provision of investment services or investment research. While particular attention has been paid to the contents of this marketing communication, no guarantee, warranty or representation, express or implied, is given to the accuracy, correctness or completeness thereof.

Any information given in this marketing communication may be subject to change or update without notice. Neither Goldman Sachs Asset Management B.V., nor any other company or unit belonging to The Goldman Sachs Group Inc., nor any of its directors or employees can be held directly or indirectly liable or responsible with respect to this marketing communication. Use of the information contained in this marketing communication is at your own risk.

This marketing communication and information contained herein must not be copied, reproduced, distributed or passed to any person other than the recipient without Goldman Sachs Asset Management B.V.'s prior written consent. Goldman Sachs Green Bond, Goldman Sachs Green Bond Short Duration, Goldman Sachs Corporate Green Bond, Goldman Sachs Sovereign Green Bond, Goldman Sachs USD Green Bond, Goldman Sachs Social Bond and Goldman Sachs and Goldman Global Impact Corporate Bond are sub-funds of Goldman Sachs Funds III, established in Luxembourg. Goldman Sachs Funds III is duly authorised by the Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier (CSSF) in Luxembourg. Both the fund and sub-funds are registered with the CSSF. The prospectus, the Key Information Document (KID) (if applicable), information on sustainability-related aspects of the fund (such as the SFDR classification), and other legally required documents relating to the fund (containing information about the fund, the costs and the risks involved) are available on am.gs.com/documents in the relevant languages of the countries where the fund is registered or notified for marketing purposes.

Goldman Sachs Asset Management B.V. may decide to terminate the arrangements made for the marketing of the Fund in accordance with article 93a UCITS Directive and article 32a AIFM Directive as implemented in Dutch law in article 2:121ca and 2:124.0a Wft. Information about investor rights and collective redress mechanisms are available on am.gs.com/policies-and-governance.

Investment sustains risk. The decision to invest in a fund should take into account all the characteristics, objectives, and associated risks of a fund as described in the prospectus. The investment promoted concerns the acquisition of units or shares in a fund, and not in an underlying asset in which the fund invests. Please note that the value of any investment may rise or fall and that past performance is not indicative of future results and should in no event be deemed as such. A return on investment may increase or decrease as a result of currency fluctuation.

This marketing communication is not directed at and must not be acted upon by US Persons as defined in Rule 902 of Regulation S of the United States Securities Act of 1933 and is not intended and may not be used to solicit sales of investments or subscription of securities in countries where this is prohibited by the relevant authorities or legislation. Any claims arising out of or in connection with the terms and conditions of this disclaimer are governed by Dutch law.

Singapore: This material has been issued or approved for use in or from Singapore by Goldman Sachs Asset Management (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. (Company Number: 201329851H).

This document has not been registered as a prospectus with the Monetary Authority of Singapore. Accordingly, this document and any other document or material in connection with the offer or sale, or invitation for subscription or purchase, of shares may not be circulated or distributed, nor may shares be offered or sold, or be made the subject of an invitation for subscription or purchase, whether directly or indirectly, to the public or any member of the public in Singapore other than (i) to an institutional investor specified in section 304 of the Securities and Futures Act, Chapter 289 of Singapore ("SFA") or (ii) otherwise pursuant to, and in accordance with the conditions of, any other applicable provision of the SFA.

The prospectus, the Key Information Document (KID) or UK Key Investor Information Document (KIID) (as applicable), the articles, the annual and semi-annual reports of the Fund may be obtained free of charge from the Swiss Representative. In respect of the Shares offered or advertised in Switzerland to Qualified Investors, the place of performance is at the registered office of the Swiss Representative. The place of jurisdiction is at the registered office of the representative or at the registered office or place of residence of the investor.

Swiss Representative: FIRST INDEPENDENT FUND SERVICES LTD, Feldeggstrasse 12, 8008 Zurich

Paying Agent: GOLDMAN SACHS BANK AG, Claridenstrasse 25, CH-8002 Zurich

Confidentiality

No part of this material may, without Goldman Sachs Asset Management's prior written consent, be (i) copied, photocopied or duplicated in any form, by any means, or (ii) distributed to any person that is not an employee, officer, director, or authorized agent of the recipient.

 $\ensuremath{\mathbb C}$ 2025 Goldman Sachs. All rights reserved.

Date of first use: May 23, 2025. 428498-OTU-2276574





Read more on am.gs.com

© 2025 Goldman Sachs. All rights reserved.